
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Amy Dredge 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 863100   Ebost: dredga@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 20 Chwefror 2019 

 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar 
Dydd Mercher, 27ain Chwefror, 2019 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda 
canlynol.   Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 
diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny.  Bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais.. 
 
 
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 

2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 
 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr 
ymddwyn gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y 
gofynnir i chi adael y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



 
 
3  Y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 13 Chwefror 2019.  

1 - 8 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt 
 
 
4  Caeau Chwarae Ysgol Bedwellte.  

9 - 34 
 

5  Adolygiad o Grantiau Adfywio CBSC.  
35 - 62 

 
6  Ariannu ar gyfer gosod goleuadau ynni effeithlon ledled T? Penallta.  

63 - 66 
 

7  Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.  
67 - 78 

 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 
 C.J. Cuss, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs B. A. Jones, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, D.V. Poole a 
Mrs E. Stenner. 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 
 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

 

 

CABINET 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, TREDOMEN 

AR DDYDD MERCHER, 30 IONAWR 2019 AM 10.30 A.M. 
 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd D. Poole - Cadeirydd 

 
Cynghorwyr: 

 C. Cuss (Gofal Cymdeithasol a Lles), N. George (Gwasanaethau'r Gymdogaeth), C.J. Gordon 
(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), Mrs B.A. Jones (Cyllid, Perfformiad a Llywodraethu), P. 
Marsden (Addysg a Chyflawniad), S. Morgan (Economi, Isadeiledd a Chynaliadwyedd), L. 
Phipps (Cartrefi a Lleoedd) ac E. Stenner (Yr Amgylchedd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd).  

 
 Ar y cyd gyda: 

 
 C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol a Thai), M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro – Cymunedau) ac 
R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol).  

 
Hefyd yn Bresennol: 

 
S. Couzens (Prif Swyddog Tai), P. Smythe (Rheolwr Technegol Tai), L. Allen (Cyfrifydd Grŵp 
- Tai), N. Scammell (Pennaeth Cyllid Corfforaethol ac S151), S. Pugh (Rheolwr Cyfathrebu), 
H. Lancaster (Uwch Swyddog Cyfathrebu) ac A. Dredge (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 
 
Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru - N. Jenkins ac S. Jones. 

 
 
1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB 
 
 Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau dros absenoldeb gan M. S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 

Dros Dro - Cymunedau).   
 
  
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 

Datganodd y Cynghorwyr B. A. Jones a N. George fuddiannau personol mewn perthynas ag 
eitem agenda 6 - Ffioedd Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 2019-2020, ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod. Nid oedd yn 
ofynnol iddynt adael y cyfarfod pan gyflwynwyd yr adroddiad ac roeddent yn gallu cymryd 
rhan yn y ddadl a'r bleidlais.  Mae'r manylion wedi eu cofnodi gyda'r eitem briodol. 
 

  
3. CABINET - 16 IONAWR 2019 
 

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 16 Ionawr 2019 
(rhifau cofnod 1 - 8) a'u llofnodi fel cofnod cywir.   
 

 MATERION SYDD ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL 
 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



  

4. ADOLYGIAD SAFON ANSAWDD TAI CYMRU (SATC) SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO 
CYMRU (SAC) 
 

Roedd yr adroddiad yn diweddaru'r Cabinet ar ganlyniad yr adolygiad dilynol gan Swyddfa 
Archwilio Cymru (SAC) ar raglen gyflwyno SATC.  Mae hyn yn dilyn yr adroddiad blaenorol a 
gyflwynwyd i'r Cabinet ar 1 Tachwedd 2017.  Atgoffwyd y Cabinet, yn ystod mis Mawrth a mis 
Ebrill 2017, fel rhan o gynllun archwilio perfformiad SAC, ymgymerodd SAC ag adolygiad o 
drefniadau'r Cyngor i gyflwyno SATC erbyn 2020. Ar adeg yr adolygiad, daeth Swyddfa 
Archwilio Cymru i'r casgliad bod “y rhan fwyaf o gartrefi tenantiaid yn parhau i fod yn is na 
safon SATC oherwydd rheoli aneffeithlon ac aneffeithiol y rhaglen ac mae'n annhebygol y 
bydd y Cyngor yn cyrraedd y safon erbyn 2020.” Mae SAC bellach wedi cwblhau ei adolygiad 
dilynol a gynhaliwyd rhwng Ebrill a Hydref 2018 ac erbyn hyn, daethom i'r casgliad bod “y 
Cyngor wedi ymateb yn gadarnhaol i'n hadroddiad SATC Mehefin 2017 ac argymhellion 
statudol drwy wneud gwelliannau sylweddol, ac o ganlyniad, rydym bellach yn dod i'r casgliad 
ei fod yn debygol o gyrraedd SATC erbyn Rhagfyr 2020." 
 
Crynhodd Ms N. Jenkins a Mr G. Jones o SAC yr adroddiad a chadarnhaon fod yr adolygiad 
dilynol wedi'i gynnal mewn dwy ran. Adolygiad o Bersbectif Defnyddwyr Gwasanaethau - a 
oedd yn canolbwyntio ar y safbwyntiau o 489 o denantiaid a 25 o lesddeiliaid mewn perthynas 
â chyflwyno rhaglen SATC. Adolygiad Dilynol - i benderfynu a yw'r Cyngor yn cyflawni ei 
ymrwymiadau a gwneud cynnydd boddhaol i gwrdd â SATC erbyn dyddiad cau Llywodraeth 
Cymru ym mis Rhagfyr 2020. Mae'r adroddiadau dilynol a ddarparwyd gan SAC yn rhoi darlun 
llawer mwy cadarnhaol ar sefyllfa bresennol rhaglen SATC a hefyd yn darparu hyder 
annibynnol bod Cartrefi Caerffili ar y trywydd iawn i gyflwyno'r rhaglen lawn erbyn Rhagfyr 
2020.   
 
Mae'r Adolygiad o Bersbectif Defnyddwyr Gwasanaeth (ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad) yn 
cyfeirio at 3 chynnig ar gyfer gwella. Cadarnhaodd y swyddogion eu bod yn derbyn y cynigion 
a byddant yn mynd i'r afael â'r un peth wrth symud ymlaen. Derbyniwyd bod angen 
gwelliannau a chysondeb yn y ffordd y cyflwynir gwybodaeth am berfformiad a rhoddwyd sylw 
i'r mater hwn o fewn yr adroddiad. Yn ogystal, bydd y Strategaeth Tai Lleol yn cael ei datblygu 
yn ystod 2019 ac fe gynhelir Asesiadau o'r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb ar adroddiadau polisi 
allweddol ar yr adeg briodol. Roedd y swyddogion yn falch o nodi bod y cynnydd a wnaed 
wedi cael ei gydnabod gan SAC.  
 
Trafododd y Cabinet yr adroddiad a thynnodd sylw at y manteision a'r pwysigrwydd o weithio 
gyda thenantiaid trwy'r broses hon. Diolchodd yr Aelodau i SAC am yr adroddiad cytbwys a 
thrylwyr a dywedodd y gellir defnyddio hyn fel dogfen weithredol wrth symud ymlaen.  
Diolchodd y cynrychiolwyr o SAC i'r Swyddogion yn eu tro am eu cymorth drwy gydol y 
broses.  

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael ei gymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, nodi 
adroddiadau SAC ac ymatebion y Swyddogion i'r adroddiadau a'r cynigion ar gyfer 
gwelliant. 

 
 

5. ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD SATC – CAMAU TERFYNOL 
 

Rhoddodd yr adroddiad drosolwg o berfformiad Tîm Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru hyd yma i'r 
Cabinet a hefyd nododd perfformiad a ragwelir hyd at fis Rhagfyr 2020.  Mae manylion y 
gwariant cyfalaf ar gyfer 2018/19 ar gyfer gwaith SATC hefyd wedi'u cynnwys, ynghyd â 
throsolwg o'r nifer o gyflawniadau a wnaed fel rhan o'r ymrwymiadau a'r manteision ehangach 
a gyflwynwyd gan raglen SATC.  
 

Page 2



  

Crynhodd y swyddogion gynnydd rhaglen SATC hyd yma, gyda manylion pellach yn yr 
adroddiad a'i atodiadau. Nododd y Pwyllgor y manylion o gefndir SATC, y contractau a 
sefydlwyd ar draws gwaith mewnol ac allanol a'r amserlenni ar gyfer cyflwyno gwaith a 
chyfraddau cwblhau arolygon a chydymffurfio. Roeddent hefyd yn cynnwys lefelau boddhad 
tenantiaid ar gyfer ansawdd gwaith mewnol ac allanol a'r safonau a gyflawnwyd.   
 
Cynghorwyd y Cabinet mai'r lefelau cydymffurfio cronnus presennol yw 80% ar gyfer gwaith 
mewnol a 62% ar gyfer gwaith allanol. Y lefelau boddhad tenantiaid yw 88% ar gyfer gwaith 
mewnol a 71% ar gyfer gwaith allanol. Cyfanswm y gwariant a ragwelir hyd at fis Mawrth 2019 
yw £200miliwn a bydd angen benthyg £20miliwn eleni. Rhagwelir y bydd yr amcangyfrif o 
£220miliwn ar gyfer cyflwyno rhaglen SATC yn debygol o fod yn rhy isel, er bod y Swyddogion 
wedi cadarnhau na fydd angen cynnydd mewn benthyg ar hyn o bryd. Er rhagwelir y bydd 
cydymffurfiaeth lawn ar 15 Mai 2020 ar gyfer gwaith mewnol a 10 Ebrill 2020 ar gyfer gwaith 
allanol, gobeithir y gellir cyflwyno'r rhain erbyn Mawrth 2020 i ganiatáu unrhyw argyfyngau 
annisgwyl a chyflawni cydymffurfiad SATC yn llawn cyn y dyddiad cau yn Rhagfyr 2020. 
 
Trafododd y Cabinet yr adroddiad a'r nifer o fanteision a grëwyd gan Rhaglen SATC .  Roedd 
hyn yn cynnwys y nifer o swyddi a phrentisiaethau sydd wedi'u creu fel rhan o'r broses 
lwyddiannus. Cadarnhaodd Swyddogion mai'r bwriad yw y bydd y prentisiaethau'n parhau ac 
yn cael eu hadeiladu i'r strwythur pan fydd pobl yn ymddeol ac ati. Yn ogystal, mae angen 
buddsoddi'n helaeth yn y gweithlu, a nodwyd bod y gweithlu mewnol wedi cyflawni lefelau 
bodlonrwydd uwch o'u cymharu â darparwyr allanol. Cadarnhaodd swyddogion hefyd fod yn 
rhaid cynnal y Rhaglen ar ôl 2020. Trafododd yr Aelodau hefyd ailgodi taliadau ac os yw hyn 
yn dal i fod yn berthnasol i unrhyw ddifrod a achosir i eiddo'r Cyngor. Dywedodd swyddogion 
mai cyfrifoldeb y Cyngor a'r Tenant yw hyn. Pan fydd Swyddogion yn gwneud ymweliadau, 
mae ganddynt ddyletswydd i wneud sylwadau ynghylch cyflwr eiddo a hefyd hyrwyddo ac 
annog y manteision o gael yswiriant cartref. 
 
Cyflwynwyd yr adroddiad i Grŵp Gorchwyl Cartrefi Caerffili ar 6 Rhagfyr 2018 a'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 16 Ionawr 2019, a chefnogodd y ddau ohonynt yr argymhellion a 
gynhwyswyd yn yr adroddiad yn unfrydol. 

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael ei gymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, ar nodi 
'Adroddiad Cynnydd Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru – Camau Terfynol'. 

 
 

6. TALIADAU'R CYFRIF REFENIW TAI – 2019/2020 
 

Datganodd Cynghorwyr B. A. Jones (Tenant Tai'r Cyngor) ac N. George (Lesddeiliad Garej) 
fuddiannau personol mewn perthynas â'r eitem hon ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod.  Nid oedd yn 
ofynnol iddynt adael y cyfarfod pan gyflwynwyd yr adroddiad ac roeddent yn gallu cymryd 
rhan yn y ddadl a'r bleidlais. 

 
Rhoddodd yr adroddiad fanylion am y taliadau rhent arfaethedig sy'n canolbwyntio'n bennaf ar 
renti tai'r cyngor ac y bwriedir iddynt fod yn effeithiol ar gyfer y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai (CRT) ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol 2019/20. 
 
Crynhodd swyddogion y broses sy'n gysylltiedig â pharatoi cyllideb y CRT. Atgoffwyd y 
Cabinet fod Polisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Rhenti Tai Cymdeithasol yn gosod band rhent 
targed ar gyfer pob Awdurdod lle mae'n rhaid i gynghorau addasu rhenti cyfartalog ar gyfer eu 
heiddo yn unol â'r bandio hyn. Mae'r cynnydd ar y polisi rhent yn sefydlog am bum mlynedd 
ac yn defnyddio ffigwr chwyddiant Mynegai Prisiau Defnyddwyr (MPD) y mis Medi blaenorol 
(yn hytrach na ffigwr chwyddiant Mynegai Prisiau Manwerthu). Mae hefyd yn ychwanegu 
cynnydd gwirioneddol o 1.5% i rent cyfartalog yr awdurdod lleol a disgresiwn ychwanegol o £2 
yr wythnos i landlordiaid cymdeithasol sy'n cwrdd â rhai meini prawf. 2018/19 oedd blwyddyn 
olaf y cytundeb pum mlynedd presennol ac yn dilyn pwysau gweinidogol wrth gymharu rhenti 

Page 3



  

Cymru i'r rheiny yn Lloegr, mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cytunoy dylai'r cynnydd fod yn y 
MPD ar gyfer 2019/20 yn unig. Mae'r disgresiwn i ymgeisio hyd at     £2 yr wythnos wedi'i 
dynnu ar gyfer y landlordiaid cymdeithasol hynny y mae eu rhent wythnosol ar gyfartaledd o 
fewn neu'n uwch na'u BandRhent Targed. Bydd y penderfyniad hwn yn gwneud cais am 
flwyddyn yn unig tra bod Llywodraeth Cymru'n disgwyl canlyniad yr Adolygiad Cyflenwad Tai 
Fforddiadwy. 
 
Roedd ffigwr chwyddiant MPD y mis Medi blaenorol yn 2.4% a dybiodd y Cynllun Busnes 
gynnydd rhent o 3%. Mae ychwanegu 2.4% i'r rhent ar gyfartaledd yn golygu bod Cyngor 
Caerffili ychydig yn is na'r Band Rhent Targed, ac felly gellir cynyddu hyn hyd at uchafswm o 
£2 er mwyn sicrhau y cynhwysir yn y cwmpas.Er mwyn bod ar waelod yr Amrediad Band 
Targed, mae angen cynnydd o 2.7% o leiaf, ac er mwyn bodloni gofynion Cynllun Busnes Tai, 
mae angen cynnydd o 3%. Y cynnydd rhent uchaf y gellir ei ychwanegu gan yr Awdurdod yw 
4.74%. Amlygwyd yr holl daliadau perthnasol yn yr adroddiad a oedd yn manylu ar yr incwm 
ychwanegol a fyddai'n cael ei gynhyrchu (ac eithrio bylchau gwag) ar gyfer pob un o'r lefelau 
cynnydd arfaethedig, ynghyd â chanran y defnyddwyr gwasanaeth sy'n derbyn budd-dal tai. 
Mae angen yr incwm cynyddol i wrthbwyso codiadau chwyddiant eraill o fewn y maes 
gwasanaeth a chefnogi cyflwyno'r holl wasanaethau sy'n ymwneud â thai, gan gynnwys 
cyflwyno'r rhaglen SATC. 
 
Cyflwynwyd yr adroddiad i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar  15 Ionawr 2018, lle 
argymhellodd yr Aelodau (gan y mwyafrif yn bresennol) am y rhesymau a nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad fod y cynnydd o  3% fesul eiddo i gydymffurfio â'r Cynllun Busnes Tai yn cael ei  
gymhwyso o fis Ebrill 2019. Trafododd y Cabinet yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad ac eglurodd 
y Swyddogion y dylid cymeradwyo'r lefel 2.7% (y cynnydd lleiaf i osod rhenti ar waelod 
absoliwt y cwmpas renti) a byddai hyn yn arwain at yr adran yn gorfod benthyg arian i gyflawni 
ei gyllideb. Hefyd, mae ansicrwydd yn y lefelau rhent yn y dyfodol a dywedodd Swyddogion ei 
fod yn ddoeth cymeradwyo'r cynnydd o 3% ar hyn o bryd. 

  
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog, ar 
gymhwyso'r cynnydd o 3% fesul eiddo i gydymffurfio â Pholisi Rhent a Chynllun 
Busnes Tai Llywodraeth Cymru o fis Ebrill 2019 . 

 
 

7. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW'R AWDURDOD CYFAN 2018/19 
 
Rhoddodd yr adroddiad hwn sefyllfa diweddaraf i’r Cabinet mewn perthynas â monitro cyllideb 
refeniw ar draws yr awdurdod gyfan ar gyfer 2018/19. Mae adroddiadau monitro cyllideb fanwl 
yn cael eu paratoi ar gyfer Pwyllgorau Craffu drwy gydol y flwyddyn ariannol. Rhoddwyd 
ystyriaeth i'r tueddiadau gwariant ac incwm yn ystod hanner cyntaf y flwyddyn a gwnaed 
rhagamcanion o'r sefyllfa alldro tebygol ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn.  Lle nodwyd amrywiadau yn y 
gyllideb, gwnaed sylwadau arnynt drwy'r adroddiad.  Dosbarthwyd yr adroddiad i'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau fel eitem wybodaeth cyn y cyfarfod ar 15 Ionawr 2019. Nid oedd 
unrhyw sylwadau oddi wrth y Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau. 
 
Atgoffwyd y Cabinet o'r rhagolygon ariannol heriol parhaus ar gyfer Llywodraethau Lleol a'r 
angen i nodi arbedion sylweddol i gefnogi Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig y Cyngor. Mae 
swyddogion wedi bod yn ymwybodol o hyn ac, o ganlyniad, cafodd gwariant ei dorri  
mewn nifer o feysydd yn ystod y blynyddoedd diwethaf gyda'r bwriad o nodi arbedion ymlaen 
llaw i gefnogi'rCynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig. Mae'r dull doeth hwn wedi arwain at duedd o 
danwariant adroddedig ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn ar gyfer rhai Cyfadrannau. Cyfeiriwyd yr 
aelodau at baragraff 4.2. yn yr adroddiad sy'n darparu cymhariaeth rhwng cyllideb wreiddiol 
2018/19, cyllideb ddiwygiedig (lle mae newidiadau a gymeradwywyd wedi'u gwneud yn ystod 
y flwyddyn), a'r alldro a ragwelir. Ceir y manylion mewn perthynas â phob maes gwasanaeth 
yn Atodiadau 2 i 5. Cyfanswm y tanwariant cyllideb refeniw rhagamcanol ar gyfer yr Awdurdod 

Page 4



  

ar gyfer 2018/19 yw £1,899,000. Dywedodd y Swyddog fod hwn yn ddarlun cadarnhaol ac 
mae'r rhagamcaniad yn llai nag yn y blynyddoedd blaenorol. Nododd yr Aelodau, wrth symud 
ymlaen, efallai y bydd yn rhaid gwneud penderfyniadau cadarn o ran monitro'r gyllideb a bod 
tanwariant a brofwyd yn flaenorol bellach yn diflannu.   
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad ffeithiol. Diolchwyd i'r staff o fewn  
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol am droi'r gorwariant a ragamcanwyd yn gynharach. Cyfeiriwyd 
at y cynnydd mewn Pecynnau Ffioedd Gofal Maeth lleol sydd wedi arwain bellach at yr Adran 
yn rhoi'r gorau i ddefnyddio Gofalyddion Maeth annibynnol ac mae Caerffili bellach yn cael ei 
ystyried ar lefel Genedlaethol o ganlyniad i'r cynnydd hwn.   

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, bod 
Cyfarwyddwyr a Phenaethiaid Gwasanaethau'n parhau i adolygu lefelau gwariant ac 
incwm er mwyn sicrhau bod cyllidebau blynyddol ac arbedion yn ystod y flwyddyn yn 
cael eu cyflawni. 

 
 

8. Y DIWEDDARAF AR GRONFEYDD WRTH GEFN 
 

Rhoddodd yr adroddiad fanylion i'r Cabinet am y cronfeydd wrth gefn y mae'r Awdurdod yn eu 
cynnal ac roedd yn cynnwys cynigion i ddefnyddio'r £109.796 miliwn a oedd ar gael ar 1 Ebrill 
2018, sef £10.8 miliwn yn is na lefel y flwyddyn flaenorol. Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn 
cynnwys cynigion ar gyfer defnyddio cronfeydd wrth gefn Gwasanaethau mewn perthynas â'r 
Gyfadran Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol, ynghyd â'r rhyddhau arfaethedig o 
gronfeydd wrth gefn ar draws nifer o feysydd ar gyfer gwariant untro'n unig. Atgoffwyd 
Aelodau dim ond unwaith y bydd y cronfeydd wrth gefn hyn (yn nodweddiadol ar gyfer 
gwariant cyfalaf a symiau amodol ar gyfer rhwymedigaethau annisgwyl posibl) ac y dylid 
cynghori'n gryf na chaiff y rhain eu defnyddio i lenwi'r bylchau lle mae angen arbedion mewn 
perthynas â chynigion y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet falans y Gronfa Gyffredinol (rhagamcenir y bydd yn £10 miliwn ar 31 
Mawrth 2019), manylion cronfeydd wrth gefn defnyddiadwy'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai (£5.090 miliwn 
ar 1 Ebrill 2018) a Chronfeydd Wrth Gefn Cyfalaf (£39.808 miliwn ar 1 Ebrill 2018). Nodwyd 
bod y cronfeydd wrth gefn penodol hyn wedi'u neilltuo at ddibenion penodol fel y'u nodir yn yr 
adroddiad. Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn manylu ar y cronfeydd wrth gefn defnyddiadwy ar 
gyfer pob Cyfadran (£31.605 miliwn ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol, £4.679 miliwn ar 
gyfer Cymunedau, £8.419 miliwn ar gyfer Addysg a Dysgu Gydol Oes a £6.995 miliwn ar 
gyfer Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol). Gwnaed gwaith i sefydlu cronfeydd wrth gefn y Gyfadran 
sydd â'r potensial i'w rhyddhau, a phan nodwyd hynny, cafodd y rhain eu hamlygu'n ddu drwy 
Adrannau 4.5-4.8 yr adroddiad. 
 
Yn ogystal, nododd yr adroddiad fanylion tanwariant gwasanaeth ar gyfer pob Cyfadran, ac 
eglurwyd, yn unol â'r Strategaeth Wrth Gefn a gytunwyd gan y Cabinet ym mis Gorffennaf 
2016, gosodwyd cap o 3% ar y swm cronnus y gellir ei gynnal gan Gyfadrannau mewn 
cronfeydd tanwariant gwasanaeth. Gan fod Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol ac Addysg a Dysgu 
Gydol Oes wedi mynd dros y cap hwn, roedd yr adroddiad felly'n crynhoi cynigion i 
ddefnyddio'r tanwariant gormodol ychwanegol hwn (cyfanswm o £0.764 miliwn). Roedd y 
cynigion hyn yn cynnwys cefnogaeth ar gyfer arian cyfatebol Band B Rhaglen Cyfalaf yr 21ain 

Ganrif, Adnoddau Adolygiad ôl-16/Adain Sengl, Gweithredu Strategaeth Ddigidol, a 
Hyfforddiant a Datblygu Arweinyddiaeth 2020 Caerffili. 
 
Ystyriwyd yr adroddiad, a gyflwynir yn flynyddol, gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 
15 Ionawr 2019. Mae'r Awdurdod yn agored ac yn dryloyw o ran cronfeydd wrth gefn yr 
Awdurdod. Mae swyddogion wedi mynychu nifer o sesiynau gyda'r Arweinydd a'r Dirprwy 
Arweinydd Cyllid yn mynd trwy’r  fantolen. Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau bod y swm o £110 miliwn 

Page 5



  

wrth gefn yn gymesur ar gyfer maint yr Awdurdod Lleol hwn. O ran yr ansicrwydd ynghylch 
Brexit a ffrydiau ariannu eraill, eglurodd y Swyddog y gallai fod goblygiadau sylweddol i'r 
Awdurdod. Gallai hyn arwain at gael llai o arian ar gyfer nwyddau a gwasanaethau, gallai fod 
colli swyddi ac efallai y bydd yr Awdurdod yn gorfod ariannu ei dwf ei hun  ar gyfer ei Gynllun 
Gostyngiadau Treth y Cyngor.  Mewn perthynas ag arian cyfatebol Band B, cadarnhawyd y 
bydd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol yn cwrdd â 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar 15 Chwefror 2019 lle y gobeithir y bydd eglurhad yn cael ei ddarparu 
ynghylch cyllid yn y dyfodol a newidiadau i delerau ac amodau. 
 
Oherwydd lefel yr ansicrwydd, cytunodd y Cabinet i ddiwygio paragraff 10.1.4. a bod 
cyfanswm y cyllid o £16 miliwn yn hytrach na £20.08 miliwn (heb £1 miliwn wrth gefn a 
gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor ar gyfer canlyniad y broses Brexit a £3 miliwn a gadwyd yn ôl 
oherwydd ansicrwydd ynghylch telerau ac amodau Brexit a Band B) yn cael ei ryddhau o'r 
amrywiol gronfeydd wrth gefn fel y manylir arnynt drwy'r adroddiad ac a neilltuwyd yn y 
fantolen ar gyfer gwariant untro'n unig. Ac argymhelliad ychwanegol yw cynnwys dyrannu 
£6.2 miliwn o'r £16 miliwn ar gyfer Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif Band B (£5 miliwn), 
Prosiectau'r Bwrdd Adfywio (£1.2 miliwn) a'r £9.8 miliwn sy'n weddill i fod yn ddarostyngedig i 
adroddiadau manwl i'r Pwyllgorau perthnasol.    

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, yn ddarostyngedig i ddiwygio paragraff 10.1.4. i ddarllen nawr bod 
cyfanswm y cyllid o £16 miliwn yn hytrach na £20.08 miliwn (heb £1 miliwn wrth gefn a 
gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor ar gyfer canlyniad y broses Brexit a £3 miliwn a gadwyd 
yn ôl oherwydd ansicrwydd ynghylch telerau ac amodau Brexit a Band B) yn cael ei 
ryddhau o'r amrywiol gronfeydd wrth gefn fel y manylir arnynt drwy'r adroddiad ac a 
neilltuwyd yn y fantolen ar gyfer gwariant untro'n unig ac argymhelliad ychwanegol i 
gynnwys y dylid dyrannu £6.2 miliwn o'r £16 miliwn ar gyfer Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain 
Ganrif Band B (£5 miliwn), Prosiectau'r Bwrdd Adfywio (£1.2 miliwn) a'r £9.8 miliwn 
sy'n weddill i fod yn ddarostyngedig i adroddiadau manwl i'r Pwyllgorau perthnasol ac 
am y rhesymau a geir yn adroddiad y Swyddog: - 

 
(i) nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad; 

 
(ii) defnyddio'r cronfeydd tanwariant cronedig uwchben y cap o 3% ar gyfer 

Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol ac Addysg a Dysgu Gydol Oes fel y manylir 
arnynt yn 4.9.2 yr adroddiad; 

 
(iii) rhyddhau cronfeydd wrth gefn penodol sy'n ymwneud â'r Gyfadran Addysg a 

Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol, sef cyfanswm o £1.5 miliwn a'u dyrannu tuag at 
arian cyfatebol Band B Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif;  

 
(iv) rhyddhau cyfanswm y cyllid o £16 miliwn yn hytrach na £20.08 miliwn (heb £1 

miliwn wrth gefn a gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor ar gyfer canlyniad y broses 
Brexit a £3 miliwn a gadwyd yn ôl oherwydd ansicrwydd ynghylch telerau ac 
amodau Brexit a Band B) o'r amrywiol gronfeydd wrth gefn fel y manylir arnynt 
drwy'r adroddiad ac a neilltuwyd yn y fantolen ar gyfer gwariant untro'n unig; 

 
(v) dyrannu £6.2 miliwn o'r £16 miliwn ar gyfer Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif 

Band B (£5 miliwn), Prosiectau'r Bwrdd Adfywio (£1.2 miliwn) a'r £9.8 miliwn 
sy'n weddill i fod yn ddarostyngedig i adroddiadau manwl i'r Pwyllgorau 
perthnasol 

 
 

9. STRATEGAETH CYFATHREBU AC YMGYSYLLTU CBSC 
 

Page 6



  

Gofynnodd yr adroddiad am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar Strategaeth ddrafft Cyfathrebu ac 
Ymgysylltu CBSC 2019 - 2022.   
 
Cynghorwyd y Cabinet bod y cyngor wedi ymrwymo i sicrhau bod y sefydliad cyfan yn 
cyfathrebu'n effeithlon ac yn effeithiol â rhanddeiliaid o bob rhan o'r gymuned. Mae cyfathrebu 
ac ymgysylltu effeithiol yn hanfodol os yw Swyddogion i ddarparu gwasanaethau o ansawdd a 
datblygu llif gwybodaeth ddwy ffordd rhwng y cyngor a chynulleidfaoedd allweddol. 
Datblygwyd y Strategaeth Cyfathrebu ac Ymgysylltu newydd sy'n nodi ymagwedd y cyngor 
tuag at gyflawni ei weithgarwch cyfathrebu ac yn amlinellu'r egwyddorion a fydd yn sail i'r 
gwaith hwn.  Esboniodd y swyddogion y bydd y Strategaeth yn rhedeg o 2019 i 2022 ac yn 
ein gosod o'r realiti lle mae'r Cyngor yn awr i ddyheadau'r dyfodol ac yn cael ei hategu gan 
gynllun gweithredu manwl. Mae'r strategaeth yn esbonio'r egwyddorion am sut y bydd y 
Cyngor yn cyfathrebu'n agored ac yn dryloyw, mewn modd syml, annhechnegol y bydd pobl 
yn gallu ei ddeall. Mae hefyd yn nodi'r gwahanol sianelau ac offer cyfathrebu y byddwn yn eu 
defnyddio i gyrraedd cymaint o bobl â phosib gyda'n negeseuon allweddol. 
 
Mae awdurdodau lleol ledled Cymru yn wynebu heriau ariannol heb eu tebyg ac mae'n 
annhebygol y bydd y sefyllfa hon yn newid dros y 3-4 blynedd nesaf, felly mae cyfathrebu 
effeithiol, ynghyd agymgysylltu cymunedol helaeth, yn ffurfio rhan allweddol o reoli'r broses 
anodd hon.  Mae angen hefyd adlewyrchu'r tirlun cyfathrebu sydd byth yn newid - yn enwedig 
o ran poblogrwydd cynyddol sianelau cyfryngau digidol a chymdeithasol. Mae'r ffordd y mae 
pobl yn derbyn, prosesu a rhannu gwybodaeth yn newid, felly mae'n hollbwysig bod yr 
awdurdod yn cadw i fyny gyda'r agenda hon. Bydd y Strategaeth yn galluogi'r sefydliad i 
fabwysiadu dull mwy cydgysylltiedig at gyfathrebu a bydd yn helpu i leoli cyfathrebu effeithiol 
wrth wraidd holl waith yr awdurdod. 
 
Bydd y Strategaeth yn cael ei chyflwyno gan yr Uned Gyfathrebu gorfforaethol, yn Nhŷ 
Penallta a Thŷ Tredomen (timau dylunio ac argraffu). Mae eu gwasanaethau allweddol wedi'u 
nodi ym mharagraff 4.7. yn yr adroddiad.  Rhoddodd y swyddogion drosolwg o'r dull Ymgyrch 
Newydd i Gyfathrebu. Mae hyn yn cynnwys dull strategol at y gweithgaredd o gyfathrebu, a 
fydd yn cefnogi'r blaenoriaethau corfforaethol, yn helpu i ganolbwyntio mwy ar weithgareddau 
strategol ac yn hyrwyddo amcanion y sefydliad. Bydd yn helpu i roi llais clir i'r sefydliad - 
naratif cryf gyda rhai negeseuon allweddol cyffredinol, sef yr hyn y mae'r sefydliad am i 
drigolion, busnesau ac ymwelwyr ‘feddwl’ wrth feddwl am Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili.  
Crynhowyd themâu'r ymgyrch newydd ym mharagraff 11 yn yr adroddiad. 
 

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 

 

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog 
gymeradwyo'r Strategaeth Cyfathrebu ac Ymgysylltu drafft 2019 -2022  
 

10. MATER EITHRIEDIG  
 

Ystyriodd yr Aelodau dystysgrif prawf budd y cyhoedd gan y Swyddog Priodol a daethant i'r 
casgliad bod ar gyfartaledd y budd i'r cyhoedd o gynnal yr eithriad sy’n bwysicach na'r budd i'r 
cyhoedd o ddatgelu'r wybodaeth, a 

 
PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol ag Adran 100A (4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, bod y 
cyhoedd yn cael ei wahardd o weddill y cyfarfod oherwydd y byddai'n debygol y 
datgelir gwybodaeth eithriedig iddynt fel y nodwyd ym mharagraff 14 ac 16 o Ran 4 o 
Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 

 
 
11. CYLLID AR GYFER SETLO HAWLIAD CONTRACT 
 

Gofynodd yr adroddiad am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet am arian untro mewn perthynas â setlo 
anghydfod cytundebol rhwng Cyngor Sir Caerffili a Heron Brothers Limited.  
 

Page 7



  

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael eu cymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog 
gymeradwyo'r argymhellion a gynhwysir ym mharagraffau 10.1.  

 
Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 12.20pm. 

 
Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd eu bod yn gofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a 
wnaed yn y cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 13 Chwefror 2018. 
 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 8



 
 

 

 

REPORT TO CABINET – 27TH FEBRUARY 2019 
 

SUBJECT: BEDWELLTY SCHOOL PLAYING FIELDS 
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT   
 
1.1 To seek views from Cabinet on the proposed disposal of two football fields situated within the 

grounds of the former Bedwellty Comprehensive School, Aberbargoed (shown hatched red on 
the Plan attached at Appendix 1) for residential development.   

  
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 At its meeting on 25th April 2018, Cabinet resolved that the playing fields would be declared 

surplus at the end of the season (20th May 2018).  The process of complying with the Playing 
Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Measure 2010 and Playing 
Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Regulations 2015 would 
commence.  This report now sets out the findings of the consultation process and makes a 
recommendation to Cabinet in respect of disposal. 
 
 

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.  It requires public bodies to think 
more about the long term, working with people and communities, looking to prevent problems 
and take a more joined up approach.  This will create a Wales that we all want to live in, now 
and in the future.  The Act puts in place seven wellbeing goals and the contents of this report 
links into two i.e. “A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language, a Globally 
Responsive Wales” 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 Bedwellty County Secondary School was officially opened in 1937.  In 1973 the school 

became a Comprehensive and it was closed in 2005 and subsequently demolished.  Although 
initially the two school football fields were unused they were brought back into beneficial use 
by the Parks Department in 2015 to provide facilities for Fleur-de-Lys AFC. 

 
4.2 In January 2018, the Authority sold the site of the former school, outlined in blue on the site 

plan in Appendix 1, for residential development.  The pavilion that supported the playing 
pitches was situated on the land sold for residential development.  As the purchaser required 
vacant possession by the end of May 2018, the pavilion (a modular style building) was 
subsequently removed from the site and scrapped.  Members should note that the pavilion 
was not fit for purpose and had been sited at several other locations. 

 
 

Page 9

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



4.3 In addition to the pavilion, parking at the site is particularly problematic and inevitably 
nuisance parking on the main road and surrounding streets would continue if the site were to 
be retained.   

 
4.4 At its meeting on 25th April 2018, Cabinet resolved that the playing fields would be declared 

surplus at the end of the season (20th May 2018).  The process of complying with the Playing 
Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Measure 2010 and Playing 
Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Regulations 2015 would 
commence.  This report now sets out the findings of the consultation process. 

 
4.5 The consultation process commenced on the 4th October and ran until 5.00 p.m. on the 22nd 

November 2018, for a period of 7 weeks.  Disposal Notices and plans were displayed at the 
site and letters hand delivered to local residents.  E-mail communication was sent to all key 
stakeholders (Play Wales, Open Spaces Society, Sports Council for Wales, Fields in trust and 
the only known user).  Disposal Notices were also circulated for two consecutive weeks (9th 
and 16th October) in the South Wales Argus.  The consultation was also live on the Council’s 
website and copies of all the documents were available for inspection at main reception at 
Penallta House during normal office hours. 

 
4.6 Three responses were received from local residents, all of who were supportive of the site 

being disposed of.  One local resident expressed concerns over congestion from car parking 
during fixtures.  A joint response was received from Sport Wales and Fields in Trust who both 
objected to the potential loss of the facility.  The objection centres on the fact that Fleur-de-
Lys AFC will be sharing facilities with Fleur-de-Lys RFC and one pitch cannot be considered 
equivalent provision.  In terms of local provision, there are 7 playing fields located within the 
local vicinity (Two adjacent to Hanger 81, Aberbargoed, one in Pengam and four within Cefn 
Fforest).  Consequently, there is no shortage of provision within the locality and all the local 
teams are/can be accommodated (this is demonstrated on the plan attached at Appendix 3).  
Within the objection, reference is also made to the relocation of the pavilion, which should 
have been considered prior to the sale of the adjoining land.  As the request to be relocated to 
Trelyn Park came from Fleur-de-Lys AFC, this was already considered.  As set out in a 
previous report, the pavilion was not fit for purpose and potential relocation costs and parking 
provision were estimated at circa £90K for which the Council has no budget. 

 
 In 2015, an extensive review of existing outdoor recreational facilities was undertaken and no 

shortfall of provision within this locality was identified.  However, the Council has capital 
monies and propose to invest in improving the playing surface (drainage etc.) at The Ynys, 
which will bring the field back into beneficial use.  This field can then be utilised by either 
Fleur-de-Lys AFC, Fleur-de-Lys RFC or any other clubs.  It is anticipated that these works will 
be completed by the start of the 2020 playing season. 

 
4.7 In addition, despite positive dialogue with Fleur-de-Lys AFC, written representation was 

received in relation to the facilities at Trelyn Park.  The points raised regarding the condition of 
the pitch can be addressed by undertaking an enhanced maintenance programme (e.g. 
rolling, chain harrowing, verti draining etc.) which has already commenced. 

 
 Reference was also made to safeguarding concerns within the pavilion.  Officers have already 

met both clubs on site to consider options to amend/restrict access inside the pavilion.  If 
there are any other concerns, officers will continue to work with the club(s) to resolve any 
issues (copies of the written responses are attached as Appendix 2). 

 
4.8 At its meeting on the 3rd October, Cabinet resolved to dispose of the site (assuming the site is 

declared surplus) and to allow the Interim Head of Property Services, in conjunction with the 
Cabinet Member for Homes and Places to negotiate a sale to Llanmoor Developments.  
However, if the current market value cannot be achieved then the site will be sold on the open 
market via a competitive tender process.  In either case, the sale will include a contractual 
commitment that 15% of the homes are affordable. 

 
4.9 If Cabinet are minded to endorse the recommendation at 10.1, the Authority must:- 

Page 10



 
1. Publish, on two consecutive weeks in at least one newspaper circulating in the 

Authority’s area, a notice informing the public of:    
 
 (a) The Authority’s decision to dispose of the playing field; and 
 

(b) Informing the public of the place or places and times at which the Decision 
Report may be inspected and the period in which it would be possible to do so.  
The minimum period is 6 weeks after the date the notice is first published in a 
newspaper; 

 
2. Make the Decision Report available for inspection during normal office hours at the 

Authority’s principal office (if it has one) and, if reasonably practicable, at one or more 
other places in its area. 

 
3. No later than the day on which the decision notice is first published: 
 

(a) Display a copy in at least one place on or near the playing field to which the 
disposal relates and, in any event, at each official entrance to the playing field, 
for not less than 6 weeks; 

 
 (b) Place a copy on its website (where it has one) for not less than 6 weeks; and 
 

(c) Send a copy of the notice and Decision Report to any person from whom the 
Authority received a substantive representation on the proposed disposal which 
the Local Authority considered in accordance with Regulation 6. 

 
4. Provide a copy of the Decision Report to any other person or body who requests it.  

The Local Authority may provide a copy free of charge, or for a reasonable charge as 
determined by the Authority. 

 
5. Under Regulation 8(8), an Authority may not proceed with a proposed disposal until a 

period of 12 weeks has elapsed from the day on which the notice is first published.  
This is intended to provide a reasonable minimum period in which objectors may 
initiate a legal challenge to the Authority’s decision. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 This report contributes to the wellbeing goals as set out in the Links to Strategy section above.  

The proposal is consistent with the five ways of working set out within the sustainable 
development principal contained in the Act.  In particular, relevant stakeholders have been 
involved in developing this proposal.  In addition the recommendation takes a long term view 
in recognising that more suitable alternative playing provision is available.   

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Following the completion of the consultation process, the Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) 

has been updated in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan and 
supplementary guidance.  A copy of the revised EIA is attached at Appendix 3.  No potential 
for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or minor negative impact has been identified. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 If the playing fields are sold for residential development, a capital receipt of circa £500K could 

be achieved.  However, this will very much depend on the prevailing market appetite.  Since 
the facility was declared surplus at the end of the 2017/18 playing season, there have been 

Page 11



marginal savings in relation to materials such as grass seed, grass cutting, line marking 
compound etc. 

 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no personnel implications associated with this report. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 This report reflects the views of the listed consultees. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the playing fields shown hatched red on the plan attached at Appendix 1 are sold for 

residential development.   
 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 To enable existing assets to be utilised to their full potential and thus reduce maintenance 

expenditure.  To enable the Authority to receive a capital receipt and to release the land for 
residential development that would include affordable homes.  

 
11.2 To fulfil the requirements of the statutory process required where a Local Authority proposes 

to dispose of a playing field. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Local Government Act 2000.  

Playing Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Measure 2010. 
Playing Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Regulations 2015. 

 
Author: Michael Headington, Green Spaces & Transport Services Manager 

(headim@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 
Appendix 1       Site Plan 
Appendix 2       Copies of Written Responses to Consultation 
Appendix 3       Updated Equalities Impact Assessment 
Appendix 4       Plan Highlighting Existing Provision 
 
Background  
Papers: Welsh Government Statutory Guidance – on the Playing Fields (Community 

Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) (Regulations) 2015  
  
Consultees: Mark S. Williams, Interim Corporate Director - Communities 

(willims@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 Robert Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community & Leisure Services 

(hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance & Section 151 Officer 
(scammn@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
Mark Williams, Interim Head of Property Services (willim17@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
Councillor Nigel George, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services 
(georgn@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
Richard Crane, Principal Solicitor (cranerk@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities, Welsh Language & 

Page 12

mailto:headim@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:georgn@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:cranerk@caerphilly.gov.uk


Consultation (cullima@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 Robert Tranter – Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer 

(trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

Page 13



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 14



Estate
Bowen

1

Public
Facility

El Sub Sta
14

Britannia

J

Coed Ty'n-y-pwll

7

2
8

9

3

5

LAF

Factory

E

D

G

Pla
y A

rea

M

11

20

24

52

15

30

45

31

21

49

54

53
50

18

32

57

19
43

38

56

46

44

39

36

35

26

37

13

25

28

34

10

64

40

63

16

22

El

LB

32

1

10

1

43

36

1

7

14
2

11

1

2

26

24

21

145

45

21

21

19

31

2

43

11

30

1

31

19

1
9

31

Factory

11

54

1

53

Industrial

Recycling

14

47

4712

48

EK

EK

EK

EK

HODGES

Britannia House

CRESCENT

CH

Gwaelodywaun Villas

Und

Un
d

Und

Und

Und

ORCHARD LANE

Tank

PENGAM ROAD

FARM VIEW

BRITANNIA WALK

BRITANNIA TERRACE

Issues

SA
LW

AY
 AV

EN
UE

Pond

ESSs

Shelter

Shelter

Shelters

17 to 19

Sub Sta

199.0m

198.7m

198.7m

188.1m

ED
 Bd

y

Sports Facility

El Sub Stas

Ty Catherine

Plas-y-coed

ANGEL LANE

El Sub Sta

5

38

Caerphilly County Borough Council

Ô Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2016 Arolwg Ordnans 100025372.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100025372.

¯1:2,500
Appendix 1

Page 15



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 16



Dear Mike 

Thank you for the email providing notification of the above consultation.  Sport Wales and 

Fields in Trust are both statutory consultees on proposed disposals of playing fields, working 

closely on such cases and would like to submit the following comments. 

In assessing proposals, the criteria set out in Planning Policy Wales is referenced which 

states that that playing fields should be protected except where: 

         facilities can best be retained and enhanced through the redevelopment of a small 
part of the site; 

         alternative provision of equivalent community benefit is made available; or  

         there is an excess of such provision in the area. 
 
The proposed disposal does not comply with the first exception as the whole site will be 
lost.  With regard to the second exception, there is no proposed replacement and although 
the users of the fields, Fleur-De-Lys AFC, have been moved to Trelyn Park, they will be 
sharing with Fleur-De-Lys RFC and only have use of one pitch which cannot be considered 
equivalent provision.   
 
In order to justify the disposal therefore, evidence is requested showing there is an excess of 
provision in the area ideally in the form of an up to date playing pitch strategy which has 
taken account of, and seeks to balance, supply and demand. 
 
Fleur-De-Lys AFC, which has several teams, has been moved from their two pitches at 
Bedwellty to one pitch at Trelyn Park.  Is this provision sufficient for their needs?  What 
about other clubs and groups in the locality?  Is there sufficient provision so that there is no 
need to retain Bedwellty?   
 
It is noted that the pavilion at Bedwellty was situated on the land already sold and its 
relocation would be costly and would mean that one of the pitches would be lost.  The need 
to retain the pavilion to support the continuing use of the pitches should have been 
considered before the land was sold. 
 
Until evidence can be provided showing there is sufficient provision in the area both Sport 
Wales and Fields in Trust would like to object to the proposed disposal. 
 
Kind regards 

 
               Jon Radcliffe  

(Sport Wales) 
 

 

  
Dr  Jonathan Radcliffe 
 

Research & Evaluation Officer  |  Uwch Swyddog Ymchwil a Gwerthuso 
 

Sport Wales | Chwaraeon Cymru 
Sophia Gardens | Gerddi Sophia 
 

Cardiff | Caerdydd 
CF11 9SW 
 

  
 

 

Tel | Ffôn:  +44 (0)29 2033 8261  

 

 

jonathan.radcliffe@sport.wales  

 

 

www.sport.wales   |  www.chwaraeon.cymru  

 

Appendix 2 

Page 17

tel:+44%20(0)29%202033%208261
mailto:jonathan.radcliffe@sport.wales
http://www.sport.wales/
http://www.chwaraeon.cymru/


  
  
 

Fleur De Lys AFC 
9 Hillside Park 

Bargoed 
CF81 8NJ 

 
Wednesday 21st November 2018 

 
To whom it may concern, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to raise comments on behalf of Fleur De Lys AFC related to the 
Bedwellty Playing Fields Consultation. 
 
In relation to the report for Cabinet – 25th April. 
 
1. For clarification, we do not currently run any senior sides but are a grassroots club providing 

football for over 100 boys and girls in our mini and junior sections, played across both Saturday 
and Sunday. 
 

2. Point 2.2 suggests that the pavilion would need to be removed or relocated. Caerphilly County 
Borough Council (CCBC) did not offer the option of the pavilion being relocated.  
 

3. Point 4.3 claims that the pavilion is no longer fit for purpose. However, it subsequently became 
apparent that the pavilion was in fact relocated to another playing field in the borough, despite 
CCBC informing us that the pavilion would not be able to be relocated due to its age and 
condition. The fact that the pavilion has been relocated calls into question the cost of circa 
£40,000 that the report claims it would cost to re-site the pavilion and connect it to services.  
 

4. Point 6.1 states that the facilities at Trelyn Park have improved changing facilities. It is true that 
the changing rooms themselves offer more space but they are in a poorer state of repair than 
the changing rooms offered by the previous pavilion. Whilst we can appreciate the facilities are 
purpose built and is not a portacabin, the facilities are known generally through the borough as 
being in poor state of repair. In addition, there is the complicating issue of sharing the facility 
with the rugby club, especially in relation to the crossover between adults and children, which 
was raised as a safeguarding concern by the rugby club. 

 
General Comments 
 
Fleur De Lys AFC invested heavily in both The Ynys and Bedwellty Playing Fields over the past 10 
years. Investment included installation of barriers at The Ynys (circa £5,000) and installation of water 
and electric into a cabin located at Bedwellty Playing Fields, again at a cost of several thousand 
pounds. All this work took place with the consent of the council, yet the full cost of the losses when 
we have been forced to move have been borne by the club, and, ultimately, by the parents and 
sponsors. By way of example, CCBC agreed and gave consent to install a cabin at Bedwellty School 
Fields to serve as a kitchen, which came at a cost in excess of £3,000, fundraised by club members. 
Having been installed for less than one year, the club was forced to decide whether abandon the 
cabin or relocate it to Trelyn Park by a deadline imposed by the council with the full cost borne by 
the club. 
 
It is true to say that we entered into the discussions regarding the move to Trelyn Park positively, 
welcoming the opportunity to return to the village having been removed from Trelyn Park by the 

Page 18



council earlier in our history. However, the facility is not a like-for-like replacement. We have gone 
from two pitches to one, which means when we have two home games, that we have to arrange 
games to take place earlier and later to follow on from each other. As well as the wear and tear on 
the pitch, opposing clubs are often reluctant to kick off later, leading to games being postponed. 
Later kick offs also bring us into the territory of dual use of the pavilion when the rugby team are 
home. In addition to this, whilst we are happy to return to the village and play at Trelyn Park, the 
field, at the insistence of the council, has been made a dual-purpose rugby/football pitch, retaining 
posts for both sports. We therefore do not have use of a pitch exclusively for use for football. 
 
The condition of the pitch has also been a disappointment. After many years as a second rugby pitch 
used mainly for training it was in a neglected state. Despite receiving assurances that the pitch 
would be made ready for football for the new season, little or no preparatory work appears to have 
been done. Fresh molehills continue to appear on the pitch and there are a large number of ruts and 
divots which have resulted in several minor injuries from players ‘rolling’ their ankles.  
 
In Sport, 
 
 
 
Shane Needs  Phil Bowden 
Secretary  Chairman 
 

Page 19



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 20



 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 
This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we 
will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and 
mutual respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job 
applicants and workforce. 
 
We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of 
ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, 
religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality, 
responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be shown to be 
justified. 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

 
Disposal of two playing fields within the grounds of the 
former Bedwellty Comprehensive School. 
 

DIRECTORATE Communities 
 
 

SERVICE AREA Community & Leisure Services 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Michael Headington 
 

 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is 
used to refer to what is being assessed, and therefore includes policies, 
strategies, functions, procedures, practices, initiatives, projects and 
savings proposals.  
  

Appendix 3 

Page 21



2 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh Language 
issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making processes governing 
work undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work done at a corporate level. 
 
It also helps the Council to meet its legal responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory 
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011, the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and supports the 
wider aims of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. There is also a requirement 
under Human Rights legislation for Local Authorities to consider Human Rights in developing 
proposals. 
 
Specifically, Section 147 of the Equality Act 2010 is the provision that requires decision-makers to 
have ‘due regard’ to the equality implications of their decisions and Welsh Language Standards 88-
97 require specific consideration of Welsh speakers under the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) 
Regulations 2015. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in more 
detail through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 2016-2020. 
 
 

PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description of the purpose of the new or updated proposal by way 
of introduction.) 
 
The Council has identified the need to dispose of two football fields situated within 
the grounds of former Bedwellty Comprehensive School, Aberbargoed.    
 
Bedwellty Comprehensive School was closed in 2005 and subsequently demolished.  
The playing fields were fallow however; in 2015 these were brought back into 
beneficial use by CCBC for use by Fleur-de-Lys AFC as the ground conditions at 
their previous home ground were unsatisfactory.     
 
 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the public 
generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road users, 
people using country parks, people on benefits etc.) 
 
The disposal of these playing fields would impact on the following: 
 

 Fleur-de-Lys AFC who are the current and sole users of the facility; 

 The local residents; 

 The local community.  
 
 
 

 
 

Page 22



3 

 

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the 
services available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed 
changes, or does not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the 
proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access to 
the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from other 
people?) 
 
The current users of the facility have indicated that they would like to return to 
playing sport within the heart of their community i.e. at Fleur-de-Lys.  This can be 
accommodated by ensuring that underutilised facilities at Trelyn Park, Fleur-de-Lys 
are brought back into beneficial use for the community as a whole.   
 
In October 2018, formal consultation including key stakeholders and local residents 
was undertaken in accordance with the Playing Fields (Community Involvement in 
Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Regulations 2015 and associated Regulations. Three 
responses were received from local residents who were all supportive of the site 
being disposed of.  One local resident expressed concerns over congestion from car 
parking during fixtures. 
 
A joint response was received from Sport Wales and Fields in Trust who both 
objected to the potential loss of the facility.  The objection centres on the fact that 
Fleur-de-Lys AFC will be sharing facilities with Fleur-de-Lys RFC and one football 
pitch cannot be considered equivalent provision.  In terms of local provision, there 
are 2 pitches in Aberbargoed (adjacent to Hanger 81), 1 in Pengam and four within 
Cefn Fforest.  Consequently, there is no shortage of provision within the locality and 
all the local teams are/can be accommodated.  Also reference is made to the 
relocation of the pavilion, which should have been considered prior to the sale of the 
adjoining land.  As the request to be relocated to Trelyn Park cam e from Fleur-de-
Lys AFC, this was already considered.  As set out in in initial repot to Cabinet on 25th 
April 2018, the pavilion was not fit for purpose and potential relocation costs and car 
parking provision were estimated to circa £90K, for which the Council has no budget.          
 
In 2015, an extensive review of existing recreational facilities was undertaken and no 
shortfall in provision within this locality was identified.  However, the Council has 
capital monies and proposes to invest in improving the playing surface (drainage 
works etc.) at The Ynys, which will bring a further field back into beneficial use.  This 
can then be utilised by either Fleur-de-Lys AFC or Fleur-de-Lys RFC or any other 
club.   
 
Despite positive dialogue with Fleur-de-Lys AFC, a written response was also 
received but related to the facilities at Trelyn Park and not those at Bedwellty.  The 
points raised related to the condition of the playing surface can be addressed by 
undertaking an enhanced maintenance programme of rolling, chain harrowing, verti- 
draining etc., which has already commenced. 
 
Reference was also made to safeguarding concerns within the pavilion.  Officers 
have already met both clubs on site to consider options to restrict access inside the 
pavilion.  If there are other concerns officers will continue to work with the clubs to 

Page 23



4 

 

resolve any issues where it can. 
    

 Actions required:-  
 

1. Undertake improvement works to the playing surface on the dual use 
field at Trelyn Park. 
 

2. Undertake improvement works to The Ynys, which can then be utilised 
as an additional facility for any club. 
 

3. Continue to work with both clubs in respect of any potential 
safeguarding issues identified within the pavilion at Trelyn Park. 
 

4. Continue to undertake enhanced maintenance of the dual use pitch at 
Trelyn Park to improve the condition of the ground. 

 

  

Page 24



 

4. What are the impacts of the proposals? 

Protected Group Positive 
Impact? 

Negative 
Impact? 

No 
Specific 
Impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can it be 
mitigated? (action) 

Gender Male X    

Female X   There is potential for the club to expand and be fully inclusive 
regardless of gender. 

Transgender X   The Council is sensitive to issues around changing facilities, but 
has not had any representations’ or engagement on this issue to 
date. 

Religion    X  
There is no evidence available currently to suggest that there 
will be a negative impact on any of these protected 
characteristics.  Following the consultation process, this will be 
reviewed and updated and any impact identified will be 
mitigated. 
 

Race    X 

Disability    X 

Sexual 
Orientation 

   X 

Age Older 
People 

  X 

Children and 
Younger 
People 
(Under 25) 

X   The relocation of Fleur-de-Lys AFC from Bedwellty School 
Playing fields to Trelyn Park can only have a positive impact on 
younger people who participate in sport.  The facilities are 
enhanced and would give opportunities to access other sporting 
activities such as rugby, which is an integral part of the sport 
currently played at the park.  Having the football club relocated 
to Trelyn Park could also increase local participation in sport. 

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership 

   X There is no evidence available to the Council currently to 
suggest that there will be a negative impact on any of these 
protected characteristics.  Following the consultation process 
this will be reviewed and updated and any impact identified will 
be mitigated, 

Pregnancy & 
Maternity 

   X No direct impact. 

Socio-economic 
Background 

 X   The relocation of Fleur-de-Lys AFC to Trelyn Park could have a 
positive impact on the local economy.  There are opportunities 
for the two clubs to form a Sport Association and access funding 
not only to enhance facilities at the park but to grow both clubs 
and bring more spectators etc. to the locality. In addition, if the 
land at Bedwellty is sold for affordable housing development, 
this could bring employment opportunities to the locality and 
thus enhance the local economy.   

P
age 25



6 

 

 Positive 
Impact? 

Negative 
Impact? 

No 
Specific 
Impact 

Impact on the seven well-being goals 

Well Being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X  
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 

The seven well-being goals show the kind of Wales we want to 
see.  Together they provide a shared vision for public bodies to 
work towards.   
 
A Prosperous Wales 
If sold for residential development, the disposal of the playing 
fields will increase employment opportunities for the area and 
enhance affordable housing provision.  This will also have a 
positive impact on the local and surrounding economy. 
 
A Resilient Wales  
The proposed disposal of the playing fields would not have any 
detrimental impact on the bio-diversity of the surrounding 
environment.  Trees etc. would be protected via the planning 
process. 
 
A Healthier Wales 
The re-location of the sole known users of the facility would 
have a positive impact on physical activity and well-being.  This 
would present a significant number of opportunities for both 
clubs using the facilities at Trelyn Park.  
 
A More Equal Wales 
The disposal and relocation of the sole users would have a 
positive impact.  This would create opportunities for the clubs to 
form an overarching sports association and access grants to 
enhance and improve the clubs and the existing facilities e.g. 
the pavilion.  
 
A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
More users at Trelyn Park will ensure that the underutilised 
facilities are brought back into beneficial use for the community.  

P
age 26



7 

 

 

 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
                   

This in itself will create a more attractive and safe environment.  
If both clubs work closer together and form an overarching 
sporting association, this will also generate community links. 
 
A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language 
There is no evidence to suggest that the disposal of the playing 
fields would have any detrimental effect on culture, heritage or 
the use of the Welsh language.  However the re-location of 
Fleur-de-Lys AFC to Trelyn Park could encourage participation 
in sport and recreation.   
 
A Globally Responsible Wales  
The proposed disposal of the playing fields will have a positive 
impact and make significant contributions to the well-being of 
residents.  If the site is sold for residential development, it will 
bring employment opportunities to the local area, increase 
affordable housing levels and thus enhance the local economy.  
It will also provide opportunities for both clubs to increase 
participation in sport and physical activity and with increased 
users at Trelyn Park, create a safer and enhanced environment.     
 

P
age 27



 

5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive or 
adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the 
English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 89, 
90, 91, 92 and 93. The full detail of each Standard is available on the Equalities and 
Welsh Language Portal) 
 
 
The disposal of the two playing fields at the former Bedwellty Comprehensive School 
will not have any effects on opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, 
and treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. 
 
 
 

 Actions required: None 
 
 

 

INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Is full information and analysis of users of the service available? 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or 
lower participation of uptake by one or more groups? If so, what has been done to 
address any difference in take up of the service? Does any savings proposals include 
an analysis of those affected?) 
 
This proposal only effects the known users of the facility i.e. Fleur-de-Lys AFC.   
 
 

 Actions required: None 
 

 

CONSULTATION 
 

7 What consultation has taken place? 
(What steps have been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been 
consulted during the development of this proposal? Have the Council’s Equalities 
staff been consulted? Have you referred to the Equalities Consultation and 
Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
Full public consultation has been undertaken in accordance with the Playing Fields 
(Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) (Wales) Regulations 2015 and 
associated Regulations.   
 

 Actions required: None 
 
 

 

Page 28



9 

 

MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or 
complaints systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able analyse 
responses from particular groups?)  
 
A ‘decisions report’, has been formulated and summarise all representations 
received.  This will then be presented to Cabinet on 27th February 2019, who will 
decide whether the playing fields should be disposed of or not. This EIA has been 
updated accordingly.  
 

 Actions required:  
 
If Cabinet are minded to approve the disposal of the playing fields, there are 
strict measures and timescales (which are set out within the report at 
paragraph 4.9), which must be followed.  

 

 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the community 
are being met?) 
 
This will be monitored via the questions included within the consultation. 
 

 Actions required:  None 

 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising amongst 
staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of some sort?) 
 
No 
 

 Actions required: None 
 

 
 

11 Where you have identified mitigating factors in previous answers that lessen 
the impact on any particular group in the community, or have identified any 
elsewhere, please summarise them here.  

 
All responses received via the consultation process have been considered and 
mitigated against (see below) to lessen any potential impact:- 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



10 

 

Summary of Proposed Actions:- 
 

1. Undertake improvement works to the playing surface on the dual use 
field at Trelyn Park. 
 

2. Undertake improvement works to The Ynys, which can then be utilised 
as an additional facility for any club. 
 

3. Continue to work with both clubs in respect of any potential 
safeguarding issues identified within the pavilion at Trelyn Park. 
 

4. Continue to undertake enhanced maintenance of the dual use pitch at 
Trelyn Park to improve the condition of the ground. 
 

5. If Cabinet are minded to approve the disposal of the playing fields, there 
are strict measures and timescales (which are set out within the 
‘decisions report’ at paragraph 4.9), which must be followed. 
 

 

12 What outcome does this Equality Impact Assessment suggest you take? You 
might find that more than one applies. Please explain why you have come to this 
decision. 
 

Outcome 1 X No major change needed – the EIA hasn’t 
identified any potential for discrimination or 
negative impact and all opportunities to 
advance equality have been taken 

Outcome 2  Adjust the policy to remove barriers 
identified by the EIA or better advance 
equality. Are you satisfied that the proposed 
adjustments will remove the barriers you 
identified? 

Outcome 3  Continue the policy despite potential for 
negative impact or missed opportunities to 
advance equality identified. You will need to 
make sure the EIA clearly sets out the 
justifications for continuing with it. You need 
to consider whether there are: 

 sufficient plans to stop or minimise the 
negative impact 

 mitigating actions for any remaining 
negative impacts 

 plans to monitor the actual impact. 

Outcome 4  Stop and rethink the policy when the EIA 
shows actual or potential unlawful 
discrimination. 

 
 
 
 

Page 30



11 

 

 Our Assessment is Outcome 1 – No major change needed 
 
We have reached this conclusion as no negative impacts have been identified during 
the process.  There are a number of actions proposed and this assessment will be 
kept under continuing review throughout the process. 

 

 

Completed by: Michael Headington 

Date: 3rd January 2019 

Position: Green Spaces & Transport Services Manager 

 
 

Page 31



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 32



Disposal of Sports fields
Key:

Former Bedwellty Comprehensive School

Cefn Fforest

Hanger 81

Pengam

1:14,007

Caerphilly County Borough Council, 100025372, 2019

4 Pitches

1 Pitch

2 Pitches

2 Pitches

Appendix 4

Page 33



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 34



1 
 

  
 
 

 

CABINET – 27TH FEBRUARY 2018  
 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF CCBC REGENERATION GRANTS  
 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT   
 
1.1 Following a review undertaken on the revenue and capital grant schemes currently 

administered by the Council’s Regeneration Division, it is recommended that existing grants 
be amalgamated into a combined “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund“ that focuses delivery on 
developing business growth and creating employment opportunities. To accommodate this 
officers propose merging several grant programmes including the Community Regeneration 
Fund and focusing their budgets into the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund. Approval to consult more 
widely on these proposals is being sought from Cabinet. 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The current grant schemes are administered by both the Urban Renewal and the Business 

Support & Funding Teams within the Regeneration Division and offer financial support to both 
the commercial/business sectors and community/voluntary sectors. The current grant 
schemes are as follows: 

  
 Business Grants      Administered By 
 

 Commercial Improvement Grant (CIG)   Urban Renewal Team 
 Business Development Grant (BDG)   Business Support & Funding Team 
 Business Start Up Grant (BSUG)    Business Support & Funding Team 

 
 

Community / Voluntary Grants 
 

 Community Regeneration Fund (CRF)  Business Support & Funding Team 
 Oakdale Community Benefit Fund (OCBF) Business Support & Funding Team 

 
 
2.2 The above are a mixture of revenue and capital funded grants and as such there is a 

requirement to manage and keep them separate.  
 
2.3 This Report provides an evaluation of the current grant schemes and outlines the potential to 

combine the grants into a single “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund” with a refocus towards 
offering improved support to start up businesses, stimulating economic growth, filling identified 
supply chain voids and supporting job creation. The report requests further consultation with 
the voluntary sector and community groups on the proposals within the report. 

 
 

Page 35

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



2 
 

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The scheme supports the Well-being Objectives set out in the Caerphilly County Borough 

Council Corporate Plan 2018-2023, specifically “Enabling Employment”. 
 
3.2 The scheme supports the Council’s Anti Poverty Strategy,  whilst supporting and encouraging 

economic growth and business development which are themes running through the Council’s 
Regeneration Strategy entitled ‘A Foundation for Success 2018-2023’. 

 
3.3 The grants programme will have a positive impact upon the social, economic and 

environmental well-being of the area and community it serves.  In particular the grants 
contribute to the following goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 
2015: 

 

 A resilient Wales 

 A sustainable Wales 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language 
 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 

Background 
 

4.1 Grants are administered by the Urban Renewal Team and Business Support & Funding Team 
within the Regeneration and Planning Division. Urban Renewal administers a Commercial 
Improvement Grant Scheme (CIG), which is a capital budget targeted towards retail and 
commercial property improvements in towns and villages within the County Borough. The 
Business Support and Funding Team administer the Business Start Up Grant (BSUG) which 
is revenue funded and Business Development Grant (BDG) to the business sector which is 
made up of a capital and revenue budget.  

 
4.2 Two additional grants are aimed at the community/voluntary sector, namely: the Community 

Regeneration Fund (CRF) which is a mixture of capital and revenue funding along with the 
Oakdale Community Benefit Fund (OCBF) which also consists of revenue and capital monies. 

 
4.3 Officers have undertaken a comprehensive review of the current regeneration grant regimes, 

including the option to merge the grants into a single, targeted grant with the aim of offering a 
greater focus on: supporting start up businesses; encouraging economic growth; filling 
identified supply chain voids and stimulating and supporting job creation within the County 
Borough. 

  

Overview of current Regeneration Grant Schemes 
 
4.4 The following existing grant schemes are funded by the Council’s internal capital and revenue 

annual budget allocations. There are no conditions which would preclude changes or mergers 
of the Commercial Improvement Grants or Business Support Grants. However, the 
Community Grants Programmes will require Cabinet Approval to revise (see also paragraph 
7.6). 

 
 Commercial Improvement Grants (Urban Renewal Team) 
 
4.5 Financial assistance is offered for improvements to commercial, retail and industrial premises 

located in town and village centres within the County Borough. Eligible works include the 

Page 36



3 
 

conversion, extension, improvement or modification of existing commercial buildings, and the 
conversion of other buildings into commercial, industrial or community use. The scheme offers 
a grant rate of up to 50%, with the maximum amount of grant offered to any one property not 
exceeding £15,000. In recent years the annual budget allocation for the CIG scheme has 
been £50,000 per annum. There are currently over 50 expressions of interest for this fund. 
 
Business Support Grants- (Business Support & Funding Team) 

 
4.6 Targeted at both existing businesses and new start ups. The Business Development Grant 

(BDG) currently supports established businesses to purchase capital equipment, IT 
equipment, software, marketing and web site development and some internal building works 
to upgrade their premises. Grant funding of up to 45% of the project cost is offered to a 
maximum of £2,000 per project.  The annual budget for 2018/19 is £51,251 although it is 
expected to reduce by £25,000 for one year only in 2019/20.  

 
4.7 The Business Start Up Grant (BSUG) is designed to help residents of the County Borough 

set up a full time business for the first time. Grant funding of up to 50% of the eligible project 
costs, to a maximum of £500 is offered. The annual budget for 2018/19 is £5,000. 
Applications are invited all year round for both BDGs and BSUGs subject to budget availability 
and are assessed with a recommendation for grant award or refusal as and when the full 
assessment has been completed by the case officer. This is not a CCBC core budget and is 
funded by TATA steel who provides the Council with this benefit fund. 

 
Community Regeneration Fund (Business Support & Funding) 
 

4.8 This fund enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the County Borough to bid 
for capital and/or revenue funding to take forward initiatives they have developed as part of 
the community planning process. Funding is available up to a maximum of 80% of the total 
project costs. Applicants can apply for a maximum of £25,000 in capital.  Revenue funding for 
one year can be offered, subject to the availability of resources, up to a maximum of £30,000. 
The annual budget for 2018/19 is £199,057 (£100,057 revenue and £99,000 Capital). This 
allocation will reduce in 2019/20 due to the need to establish MTFP savings. 
 

4.9 Applications are invited up to five times a year, subject to the availability of resources where 
applications are discussed and assessed at a Grants Panel meeting.   

  
 Oakdale Community Benefit Fund (OCBF) 
 
4.10 The Oakdale Community Benefit Fund was established during the development of two 2MW 

wind turbines amounting to circa £10,000 per annum for the duration of the lease period (25 
years). The purpose of the OCBF is to support and benefit viable and sustainable 
communities within 1.5 miles of the turbines, which comprises the communities of Argoed, 
Croespenmaen, Kendon, Oakdale, Penmaen, Pentwyn and Trinant. A grant of up to 80% of 
total project costs is available with the maximum grant available limited to £3,000 capital 
and/or £3,000 revenue in a single year.  It should be noted that this is not a CCBC core 
budget and as such it will be restricted to the terms and condition imposed by the developer 
who provides the Council with the benefit fund. 
 
Evidence of Impact 

 
4.11 This section outlines how the grants have been used over the last 3 years, identifies the 

positive impact of the various programmes and considers the appropriate level of funding 
support under the proposed “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund”: 

 
 

Page 37



4 
 

Commercial Improvement Grants (CIG) 
 

4.12 In the financial 5 year period between 2013 and 2018 a total of 16 CIG were awarded for 
improvement works to properties in towns and villages throughout the County Borough. 
Although the maximum grant award is £15,000 under this programme, the average grant 
award was £9,100. Evidence therefore suggests that reducing the maximum grant approval to 
£10,000 will still stimulate economic activity and will also allow more applications to be 
processed per annum. 

 
Business Grants (BDG & BSUG) 
 

4.13 Evidence from the 3 previous years suggests that BDG grants at a maximum of £2,000 do 
help create jobs in small businesses. When compared against the recent LIF programme, 
(which had an average grant rate of nearly £6,000) the evidence shows that the BDG regime 
appear to be better value for money. Although it could be argued that a more targeted 
approach with a maximum grant to £10,000 would help deliver greater impact to fewer 
businesses, the facts show that awards at a lower level do help business growth and create 
more jobs overall than a more targeted approach. 

 
4.14 Small BSUG grants have been offered at a maximum rate of £500 per application. Feedback 

from officers administrating the grant suggests that this level of support is ideal to help start 
lifestyle micro businesses. With a small budget of £5,000 which is derived from an annual 
donation from TATA Steel,  it appears illogical to increase the grant level as this would 
dramatically reduce the number of new businesses that could be supported. Also by retaining 
the core elements of the grant this will also help any future awards to comply with the terms 
and conditions imposed by TATA Steel. 

 
 Community Regeneration Grants 
 
4.15  This fund enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the County Borough to 

take forward valuable projects that have a positive impact on the community. Since 2011 a 
wide range of groups have received grant aid at up to 80% intervention rate. Churches, sports 
clubs, scout groups, OAP groups and local community partnerships are regular recipients of 
the grant with bigger organisations such as GAVO and Inside Out also receiving monies from 
the fund.  

 
4.16 The Voluntary sector and community organisations play a large and critical role in helping 

local communities develop and grow. They are able to access external funding that the 
Council cannot bid into and have been very successful in the Caerphilly county borough 
council area at securing external funding for a myriad of projects.  It must be noted that large 
numbers of local people have and do currently benefit from projects supported by the 
Community Regeneration Fund. The Voluntary Sector and community organisations have 
traditionally utilised this budget to add value to the community. The Community Regeneration 
Fund has enabled third sector organisations to grow and thrive. Significant match funding has 
been levered in from other sources: between 2011/12 and 2016/17 a total of £1,897,312 was 
awarded via the Community Regeneration Fund, which levered in match funding of 
£3,351,769 from a variety of sources. However, the projects do not have an economic focus 
and the review of past spend shows that only a small proportion were targeted at 
employment, training, skills or personal development.  

 
4.17 With an underlying climate of financial cut backs to the Regeneration service area, officers 

would recommend that Cabinet consider refocusing the Community Regeneration Grant 
budget towards projects with an economic focus.  In an age of austerity, it is imperative that 
the resources that the Council has available to it are channelled to give the greatest long- 
term sustainable impact. 

Page 38



5 
 

 
 Oakdale Community Benefit Fund 
 
4.18 This fund derives from an annual contribution from the private company who operate wind 

turbines in the area. It enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the Oakdale 
area (as defined in paragraph 4.10 above) to bid for funding to take forward projects delivering 
a social, economic or environmental impact on the area or community concerned.  Since 
2014, many small community groups have benefited from the Fund, receiving grant aid at up 
to 80% intervention rate. 

 
4.19 As with the Community Regeneration Fund, although valuable to communities, most of the 

funding does not have a demonstrable impact on the local economy.  However, if changes are 
made that impact on the Community Regeneration Fund budget, then it will be desirable to 
continue with this fund and possibly extend the geographic reach to provide wider community 
benefits. 
 
Proposed New Grant Regime 

 
4.20 It is proposed that a new grants regime should concentrate more activity on developing 

business growth and creating employment opportunities within the County Borough. It is 
recommended that the primary focus of a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund should be on: 

 
 Business Start Ups in all sectors (less than 12 months trading); 

 Underutilised/empty town centre commercial properties 

 Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (e.g. those with less than 250 employees, 

with turnover not exceeding €50 million (approx. £45 million) and / or a balance 

sheet not exceeding €43 million (approx. £38.7 million); 

 Established Community Groups or Social Enterprises; 

 Filling identified supply chain voids identified by CCBC Procurement; 

 Projects that help create or safeguard jobs - contributing to the Council’s Well 

Being Goals. 

4.21 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023 outlines a number of core Well Being objectives that 
the Council will strive to deliver. Objective Two is Enabling Employment. The new grant 
regime outlined in this report will be a key tool that will allow the Council to influence / improve 
the levels of employment in the county borough. It is therefore considered appropriate to re 
focus the ‘grant’ budget allocated to Regeneration and Planning towards business growth and 
job provision in the county borough.  

4.22 Following a review and critical appraisal of the current grant regimes, it is clear that there is 
scope to amalgamate the existing business-focused grant schemes, based on the clear 
commonality of their main economic objectives and administrative processes. If Cabinet are 
minded to progress with a standardisation of current regeneration grants, it is recommended 
that the three business focused grants (CIG; BSUG and BDG) are combined into a single 
fund, namely the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund with the OCDF continuing to be administered 
separately.  

 
4.23 More radically, officers propose discontinuing the Community Regeneration Fund programme 

and focusing it’s budget into the Caerphilly Enterprise fund. The good work that the voluntary 
sector and community groups undertake is fully recognised and greatly appreciated but it is 
apparent that there are a number of external funding mechanisms that they are able to bid 
into to secure monies for localised community projects. Larger funding bodies such as the Big 
Lottery, Garfield Weston Trust and Coalfields Community Grants offer substantial grants to 
such groups. At this current moment in time, It has been established that there are upwards of 

Page 39



6 
 

twenty external grants available to these groups (See Appendix 1) and even though it is 
proposed that the CRF fund is closed, officers will continue to offer support and guidance to 
groups looking for funding and will actively signpost them to suitable available external grants.    

 
4.24 The proposed new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will prioritise those projects that can 

demonstrate job creation, safeguarding of existing jobs and which can lever in private sector 
investment. It will be aimed predominantly at businesses looking to grow within the county 
borough. Although the grant regime will be open for community groups and social enterprises 
they will need to evidence that their projects focus on economic activity. 

 
4.25 It is proposed that from 2019/20, the new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will offer funding support 

under two categories; the first being Business Support and the second being Property 
Improvement: 

 

 Fund 1 – Business Support Grants that will operate in a very similar manner to the 
BDG and BSUG and will utilise the Council’s core revenue allocation to offer grants of up 
to £500 to micro businesses and up to £2,000 to help create jobs and economic growth in 
small businesses, social enterprises and community groups. As this is predominantly 
targeted at supporting small businesses it is intended to offer grant to businesses that can 
prove they require it. There are concerns that small grants are being awarded to 
businesses with very large turnovers and that the grants have little impact on such large 
companies. Therefore grant applicants will need to provide financial evidence of the 
‘need’ of the grant based on turnover, cashflow and the liquidity of the business.  

 
The Council’s Procurement Division have identified that there are opportunities for 
business growth to fill voids in the Council’s supply chain. It is envisaged that this fund will 
be used as a tool to try and encourage the local business community to fill these gaps in 
provision. 

 
This fund will be open to community businesses, in particular social enterprises to bid 
into. 

 
 Fund 2 – Property Improvement Grants that will operate in a very similar manner to 

the existing CIG regime outlined above, with a focus on bringing empty or underutilised 
buildings back into beneficial use. This thematic will operate using a capital allocation 
and will offer capital grants of up to £10,000.    

4.26 It is proposed that the existing Business Development Grant budget will form the core of the 
Fund 1 budget.  The annual budget for 2018/19 is £51,251with a similar budget allocation in 
20/21. 
 
Pease note that under the current budget proposals, this budget is expected to reduce 
by £25,000 for one year only in 2019/20. 

 
4.27 As part of the MTFP savings for 2019/20 it is proposed that the indicative Community 

Regeneration Grant revenue budget allocation is reduced from £100,000 to £50,000. It is 
further proposed that the remaining indicative £50,000 be allocated from the CRF to the 
Caerphilly Enterprise Fund to be refocused on economic outputs under Theme 1 – Business 
Support.  

 
Please note that under the current budget proposals the residual £50k outlined above 
has been identified as a temporary ‘one year only’ cut in order to balance the budget 
for 2019/20. 

 

Page 40



7 
 

4.28 Likewise it is recommended that the 2019/20 £99k indicative capital allocation for the 
Community Regeneration fund be vired to the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund Theme 2 – Property 
Improvements. This would result in the Community Regeneration Fund having a zero budget 
which would therefore effectively end that programme. 

 
4.29 Section 7 of this report sets out in more detail the proposed allocations to be made to the new 

Caerphilly Enterprise fund and its two sub-categories for 2019/20.  
    
4.30 With extreme pressure on senior managers to make savings for MTFP, it is likely that these 

grants programmes will come under scrutiny. It is therefore imperative that available 
resources are aligned to make the greatest impact and help take forward the Council’s 
Corporate Objectives. 

 
4.31  The Evidence of Impact section (4.11 – 4.19 above) outlines key evidence that has led 

officers to propose the maximum grant available under each of the priority funding categories 
as outlined in Table 1 below: 
 
 
Table 1: Proposed Grant Limits and Intervention Rates 
 

Fund Proposed Grant Available Intervention Rate 

   

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund - 
Theme 1 “Business Support” 

£200- £2,000 revenue 
Up to 45% 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund -  
Theme 2 “Property 

Improvement” 
Up to £10,000 capital 

Up to 50% 

Oakdale Community Benefit 
Fund 

Up to £3,000 capital 
Up to £3,000 revenue 

Up to 80% 

 
 
4.32 It is further recommended that any grant funded project would need to demonstrate that it will 

contribute to improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well being of the 
County Borough: 

 
Economic  
There will need to be evidence of job creation (at least one job) where grants of up to £5,000 
are awarded. Where larger grants are awarded additional job creation will need to be 
evidenced. 

 
Environmental 
Property Improvement Grants must deliver environmental enhancements. Projects to 
refurbish empty, vacant or underutilised commercial premises will be prioritised.  

 
Social/Cultural 
Social enterprises/businesses must demonstrate how their project will contribute to their future 
growth and development. 

 
4.33 It is proposed that the existing geographical boundary for the Oakdale Community Benefit 

Fund is extended from 1.5 miles to 2 miles.  This would add the communities of Markham, 
Cefn Fforest, Blackwood, part of Newbridge and Crumlin to the existing eligible communities 
of Argoed, Croespenmaen, Kendon, Oakdale, Penmaen, Pentwyn and Trinant.  It also brings 
in the communities of Llanhilleth, Brynithel and Aberbeeg in Blaenau Gwent and it should be 

Page 41



8 
 

noted that a number of similar schemes across the UK cut across local boundaries.  However 
it is not suggested that communities outside Caerphilly CBC should have access to this fund. 
As this fund is provided from a contribution from a private company then they would need to 
agree to the expansion of the boundary. 

 
Approval Process – Options  

 
4.34 Two options for the grants approval process have been considered as part of this review: 

 Written Procedure via Case Officer Grants Approval Report (Report certified by Case 
Officer, Line Manager, Grants Manager, Head of Service in consultation with Cabinet 
Member) 

 Panel Meeting and Assessment – Case Officer Recommendations discussed at 
regular Panel meetings with designated Panel members (including Case Officer, 
Grants Manager, Head of Service, minimum quorum required)  

 
4.35 On balance, it is recommended that the current written procedure process is retained for all 

new business grants under the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund that require grant funding of less 
than £5,000. This approach has worked for a number of years and has been effective and 
more responsive to business focused grants, as it allows projects to be assessed in a timely 
manner, on a rolling basis as they are received. It should also be noted that this process has 
been subjected to detailed external audits when the EU supported Local Investment Fund was 
delivered (up to April 2015).  

 
4.36 It is acknowledged, however, that more scrutiny may be required for grant awards above 

£5,000. It is therefore recommended that a grants panel is established to assess grant 
applications over this £5,000 threshold both for revenue and capital bids. Grant panel 
membership would consist of: 

 
 Project Officer presenting report 
 Section/Team  Manager 
 Grants Manager, Corporate Finance 
 Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, Sustainability & Wellbeing of 

Future Generations 
 Head of Regeneration and Planning 

 
4.37 All grant applications will undergo a stringent review, both those that go to panel and those 

under £5,000 that will be awarded directly. There are already review procedures in place for 
the existing grants and officers have developed these to be applicable for the grant regime. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 This proposal contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above. It is 

consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in the Act and is aimed at improving the economic well being of the County Borough. 

 
5.2 As such the proposals align with the following well being goals: 
 

 A Prosperous Wales – financial contributions to targeted business sectors will support 
opportunities for development of a skilled population in an economy which generates 
wealth and employment opportunities; 

 A resilient Wales – targeted grant support will foster social, economic resilience and the 
capacity to adapt to change; 

 A more Equal Wales – the grant programmes encourage applications from a wide range 
of sectors and organisations, community, voluntary or business, and reflect a broad 

Page 42



9 
 

opportunity for participation.  
 A Wales of cohesive communities – the grant programmes support measures to provide 

attractive and well connected communities through financial support to community based 
projects and environmental improvements.  

 A globally responsible Wales – the grant programmes support measures which improve 
the economic, social and environmental well being of the County Borough.  

  
 
6.  EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1  An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Plan and supplementary guidance and some potential negative impact has been identified 
affecting one or more of the target equality groups.  

 
6.2 A full EQLA has been carried out and is appended to the report. Please see Appendix 2. 
 
 
7.      FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 The review has highlighted that up until 2018/19 that community focused grants have had an 

overall budget of nearly three times that of the funding targeted at the business community. 
Even the latest 2018/19 budget is nearly twice that of business orientated grants. This report 
seeks to alter this balance. Proposed budget allocations for 2019/20 are set out in table 2 
below.  

 
7.2 In order to meet MTFP targets it has been proposed that several of the grant allocations are 

reduced from 2019/20 onwards and amalgamated into the two Enterprise Funds identified in 
section 4.25. Table 2 outlines those proposed for 2019/20.  

 
7.3 The 2018/19 approved budgets for CRF are £100,057 revenue and £99K capital.  The 

proposal in this report is that the CRF be closed and the £100K revenue budget be split 
between a £50K MTFP saving and a £50K virement into the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund 
Thematic 1.  

 
As noted above, under the current budget proposals, the residual £50k has been 
identified as a temporary ‘one year only’ cut in order to balance the budget for 2019/20. 
Likewise there will be a ‘one year only’ £25k reduction in the BDG allocation. 

 
7.4  The Community Regeneration capital budget of £99k will be redirected towards the property 

focused category of the proposed Caerphilly Enterprise Fund.  
 
7.5 These proposals are reflected in Table 2 below. In short, this report recommends the closure 

of the Community Regeneration Fund, with monies being refocused towards delivering 
tangible economic outputs. 

 
Table 2: Proposed Grant Structure and Core Allocations 

 

Proposed Grant Regime  Proposed Core Allocations 

 Revenue Capital Total 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund  - Fund 1 
Small businesses  

£101,251 
£26,251 
for 19/20 

 

£0 
£101,251 

£26,251 for 19/20 

Page 43



10 
 

Proposed Grant Regime  Proposed Core Allocations 

 Revenue Capital Total 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund  - Fund 1 
Micro businesses £5,000 £0 £5,000 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund  - Fund 2 
Property Grants 

£0 £149,000 £149,000 

Total for Business Grants £106,251 
£31,251 for 

19/20 
£149,000 

£255,251 
£180,251 for 

19/20 

    

Community Regeneration Grant £0 £0 £0 

Oakdale Community Benefit Fund 
£10,000 £0 £10,000 

Total for Community Grants 
£10,000 £0 £10,000 

 
7.6  It should be noted that any decisions relating to the CRF grants programme, will need to be 

viewed against the existing relationship between the Council and the Voluntary Sector. The 
Compact / Partnership Agreement is currently being renewed and will be presented in its final 
form to the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee. Via the Compact Agreement, the Voluntary 
Sector Liaison Committee is a consultee on changes to third sector funding and should be 
included in the consultation process.  It is therefore suggested that the recommendations in 
this report be presented to the voluntary sector and community groups (probably through 
consultation with the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee) as part of a consultation process 
before implementation. 

 
 
8.      PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 Currently Business Support and Funding Team officers are the primary contact for the 

business growth grants with enquires relating to property improvements directed to the Urban 
Renewal team.  

 
8.2 The restructuring of the Regeneration and Planning Department will identify roles and 

responsibilities for officers with regards to this new grants model, should it be implemented. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 A wider consultation process is proposed with the voluntary sector and community 

organisations before implementation of the new grants programme. The results of this 
consultation will be reported back to Cabinet.  The views and comments of consultees to date 
have been reflected in the report and certain concerns are outlined below. A response to each 
concern is outlined in italics below each bullet point.  

 
9.2 The Community Regeneration Fund was previously administered by the Council’s Policy 

Section. They are extremely concerned at the proposals to amalgamate the funds and refocus 
all of them on enterprise and job creation/employment. So rather than reflect their views and 
comments within the body of the report, it is considered prudent to summarise their views on 
the proposed refocusing of the current grant regime below.   

 

Page 44



11 
 

 The Community Regeneration Fund has enabled third sector organisations to grow and 
thrive  The report fails to mention the significant match funding that the community grant 
programmes lever in from other sources.   Between 2011/12 and 2016/17 a total of 
£1,897,312 was awarded via the Community Regeneration Fund, which levered in match 
funding of £3,351,769 from a variety of sources, which is a massive amount of economic 
benefit for the county borough as a whole. 

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - The proposed grant regime is not being established 
to deter community groups from applying but with the overall budget being cut year on 
year the grant regime needs to have a clear focus. This focus, as outlined in the report, 
will be on stimulating the local economy and as such the grants regime will concentrate 
on more defined economic outcomes. The voluntary sector and community groups do 
have access to a range of alternative funding bodies outside of this grants programme 
that they can apply to and expertise exists within the Council to continue to help signpost 
organisations and groups to these funding sources.  

 

 It appears very unjust that the focus is moving from supporting our local communities to 
only supporting businesses.  The proposals in the report will make the majority of third 
sector organisation ineligible for the funding and, those that are will have to compete with 
the business sector.  External grant sources such as EU funding were used to top up 
Council budgets to great effect.  Many of the projects funded via the community grant 
schemes also included employing staff, so to suggest that the proposed changes will give 
a greater economic focus is not fully accurate.   

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - The recommendations in this report must be viewed 
in the wider context. Budgets for discretionary grants have seen severe cutbacks and 
although it is acknowledged that the CRF has had some positive economic benefits, its 
primary focus has always been around supporting community orientated projects. With 
dwindling resources, there is a need to make the process more competitive and it has 
been determined that there should be a refocus on projects that bolster the local 
economy.  Groups who have traditionally accessed the CRF fund will still be able to bid 
into the fund but with more focused projects. Again it is worth re-iterating that all voluntary 
and community groups would acknowledge that there are numerous alternative funding 
mechanisms for community group support. Circa twenty alternative funding sources exist 
that these groups will still have access too and officers will signpost towards. Although 
budgets are being cut there will still exist a very strong and well staffed Community 
Regeneration Team offering support to these communities on a daily basis. 
 

 The report suggests that most of the CRF funding does not have a demonstrable impact 
on the local economy, and this is not the case.  Had it not been for the seed funding 
provided by the Community Regeneration Fund, development projects like Newbridge 
Memo, Van Road Church in Caerphilly, Rudry Village Hall and many others simply may 
not have happened. 

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - This report does acknowledge the positive impact 
that the grants have had over time, but it also clearly argues that the Council must 
prioritise its reducing resources. It is believed that the best return on this budget will be to 
take a more focused economic approach to its distribution in order to bolster the 
robustness of local communities. 
 

 There is a need to consult with the voluntary sector in relation to the proposed changes.  
This is enshrined in the Compact agreement, which the Council is a primary signatory to.  
The Compact / Partnership Agreement is currently being renewed, having been approved 
in principle by the Public Services Board in September and will be presented in its final 
form to the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee in due course.  CCBC is a prime 

Page 45



12 
 

signatory to the Compact and the Funding Code of Practice.  Via the Compact 
Agreement, the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee is a consultee on changes to third 
sector funding and should be included in your consultation.  It is suggested that this report 
be presented to the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee as part of the consultation 
process 

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - A full consultation process with the voluntary sector 
and community groups will be undertaken as part of the wider consultation process before 
the new grants regime goes live. This engagement will also allow the Council to highlight 
replacement funding opportunities available to these groups.  
 

 The report makes reference to the Well-being of Future Generations Act.  The Act 
requires that all public bodies consider the social, economic, environmental and cultural 
benefits of everything that they do, so a focus purely on economic benefits would not be 
in keeping with the spirit of the Act.  The vast majority of the projects previously funded 
via the CRF have impacts on multiple benefits, including economic. 

 

 Regeneration Officer Comments - The Well Being of Future Generations Act has been 
considered in delivering this report. Focusing the impact of grants towards maximising 
local economic activity will, it is believed, have the most profound effect on local 
communities well being. Stimulating more favourable economic conditions and new 
employment opportunities will have a plethora of positive outputs and outcomes on the 
local community as people’s overall financial security/stability and well-being improves.  
 

 The report requires a full EQLA be carried out as many CRF funded projects are aimed 
specifically at these targeted groups. These target groups need to be fully consulted 
before the report is approved by Cabinet.  

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - This has been undertaken as part of the Cabinet 
report consultation mechanism. The full EQLA is attached at Appendix 2. 
 

 In a wider context Community Asset Transfer is becoming more of a focus for the Council 
in the current financial climate.  With ever diminishing resources it is unlikely that Council 
will be able to maintain the range of community venues within the county borough such as 
community centres, sporting facilities, changing rooms etc.  It will be difficult to expect 
community organisations to take on these sorts of facilities if the Council cannot offer 
financial support with grant funding. External funding sources that they can be signposted 
to and offered support. 

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - The CRF is a discretionary grants regime. 
Community and voluntary groups would be advised not to look to build support from this 
funding source into their building management or financial management models as further 
cuts are very probable.  
 

 
10. PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
 
10.1 The report advocates the merging of the current Commercial Improvement Grant, the 

Business Development Grant, the Business Start Up Grant and the Community Regeneration 
Fund into the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund which will concentrate more activity on developing 
business growth and creating employment opportunities within the County Borough. The 
proposals will simplify the grants application process and seek to standardise grants 
administration throughout the Regeneration Division. Officers seek approval to undertake a 
consultation exercise with community groups and the voluntary sector over the proposals; in 

Page 46



13 
 

particular the recommendation to effectively discontinue the Community Regeneration Fund 
and refocus its budget into delivering this new grants programme.  

 
  
11. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 That Cabinet note the content of the report and the principles set out in it. 
 
11.2 That Cabinet approve officers conducting a wider consultation exercise with the voluntary 

sector and community groups on the contents of the report. 
 
11.3 That following consultation, a further report be presented to Cabinet. 
 
 
12. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1 Primarily to allow officers to consult more widely on proposals to offer improved support to 

businesses and to maximise economic growth.  
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Sections 70 and 71(1) of the Government of Wales Act 2006 and sections 126-128 of the 

Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996.   
 
Author: Allan Dallimore, Team Leader, Urban Renewal 
 
Consultees: Cllr Sean Morgan, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, 

Sustainability & Wellbeing of Future Generations 
Christina Harrhy – Interim Chief Executive 
Mark S Williams, Interim Corporate Director (Communities)  
Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning 

  Antony Bolter, Group Manager (Strategy Funding & Support) 
  Glenn Cooper, Project Officer, Urban Renewal Team 
  Clair Vokes, Grants Officer (Strategy Funding and Support) 
  Tina McMahon, Community Regeneration Manager 
  Dave Roberts, Principal Group Accountant   
  Nadeem Akhtar, Group Accountant, Corporate Finance 
  Kath Peters, Corporate Policy Manager 
  Alison Palmer, Community Planning Co-Ordinator 
  Vicki Doyle, Policy Officer, Statistics and Funding 

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities and Welsh Language 
Shaun Watkins, Principal Personnel Officer 
 

Apendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Voluntary Sector/Community Group: Sources of External Grants 
Appendix 2 – Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 

Page 47



14 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 

GRANT SCHEME 
NAME PROVIDER GRANT DESCRIPTION WHO CAN APPLY 

CAPITAL / 
REVENUE GRANT AMOUNT 

MATCH FUNDING 
REQUIRED 

Technical Assistant 
Grant 

CCBC To support charities and 
voluntary organisations in 
Caerphilly undertaking a 
capital project with costs 
associated with technical 
assistance 

Voluntary or Charitable 
organisations in Caerphilly 

Capital Up to £4800 including 
VAT 

Not stated 

Welsh Church 
Fund 

CCBC To promote the activities of 
voluntary organisations that 
benefit the people of 
Caerphilly and enrich local 
communities 

Registered voluntary charities, 
movements and institutions which 
contribute towards community life, 
community organisations, 
community based projects, churches 
and chapels 

Capital Smaller Projects up to 
£5,000 or larger 
projects up to a 
maximum of £10,000 

Up to £5000 fully 
funded for larger 
projects of over £5000, 
the remaining amount 
will be subject to a 
grant rate of 75% up to 
a maximum grant of 
£10,000  

Health & 
Wellbeing Grant 

Aneurin Bevan 
University 
Health Board 

The purpose of the Health, 
Social Care and Wellbeing 
Grant is to support voluntary 
organisations working within 
the Caerphilly County Borough 
area on projects related to 
improving the health and 
wellbeing of residents. 

Voluntary or community 
organisation, charity, community 
interest company or social 
enterprise operating in Caerphilly 
County Borough 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Max £4000 fully funded or match 
funded 

GAVO Cash 4 U 
Grant 

GwirVol 
Partnership 

The purpose of the Cash 4 U 
Grant is to fund exciting and 
worthwhile projects that 
create more Volunteering 
opportunities for young people 
aged 14-25. 

Voluntary organisations Capital & 
Revenue 

    

P
age 48



15 
 

Garfield Weston 
Foundation 

Garfield 
Weston 
Foundation 

Supports a wide range of  
charitable acitivity in the UK in 
areas such as arts, community, 
education, environment, 
youth, faith, health, welfare, 
museums and heritage 

UK registered charities, Charitable 
Incorporated Organisations, 
Educational establishments 
including schools & universities, 
Churches, Housing Associations, 
Museums and Galleries 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Regular grants of up 
to £100,000 or Major 
Grants of £100,000 
and above 

Match Funding 
required.  Capital 
projects 10% of total 
project cost.  Revenue 
projects 10-20% of 
organisations total 
income/salary.  Like to 
see evidence of 50% 
funding before applying 
for grant 

Coalfields 
Community Grants 
- Wales 

The Coalfields 
Regeneration 
Trust 

The programme is for 
community and voluntary 
organisations that can clearly 
demonstrate that a grant will 
impact positively on people 
living in the former Coalfield 
Communities of Wales 

Community & Voluntary 
Organisations 

Capital & 
Revenue 

From £500 up to 
£7000 

Fully funded up to 
£7,000 or can be used 
to match fund 

Gwent High 
Sheriffs' 
Community Fund 

Community 
Foundation in 
Wales 

Funding is available for 
community-based initiatives 
and projects that reduce crime 
and improve community safety 
in Gwent.  The fund aims to 
provide a safer and better 
quality of life for the people of 
Gwent 

Community groups, voluntary 
organisations and local charities in 
Gwent, ie the local authority areas 
of Newport, Blaenau Gwent, 
Torfaen, Monmouthshire and 
Caerphilly. 

Capital Max £5000   

National Lottery 
Awards for All - 
Wales 

Big Lottery 
Fund 

Grants are available for 
community organisations, 
schools and statutory bodies in 
Wales to help improve local 
communities and the lives of 
people most in need 

Voluntary and community 
organisations, including: registered 
charities, constituted groups and 
clubs, not-for-profit companies and 
community interest companies, 
social enterprises, schools, statutory 
bodies including town, parish, and 
community council. 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Grants between £300 
and £10,000 

Fully funded up to 
£10,000 or match 
funded  

P
age 49



16 
 

Wales - People 
and Places 

Big Lottery 
Fund 

People and Places aims to 
support people and 
communities working together 
and using their strengths to 
make positive impacts on the 
things that matter to them the 
most 

Voluntary or community 
organisation, registered charities, 
constituted groups or clubs, 
community interest companies, 
social enterprises, schools, statutory 
bodies including town, parish or 
community council 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Medium grant offers 
from £10,001 to 
£100,000 for projects 
lasting up to 5 years 
and Large grant offers 
from £100,001 to 
£500,000 for projects 
lasting up to 5 years 

Funding is available for 
all eligible costs of the 
project but applicants 
are encouraged to seek 
funding from other 
sources 

People's Postcode 
Trust 

People's 
Postcode 
Lottery 

Provides project based funding 
fo rup to 12 months in lenght 
ranging from £500 - £20,000 to 
organisations within Great 
Britain.  The current themes of 
the Trust are: Poverty 
Prevention, Employability 
Programmes and Human 
Rights through combatting 
discrimination 

Registered charity, CIO/SCIO, 
Constituted voluntary or community 
group, social enterprise, community 
interest company, not-for-profit 
organisation, local club or other 
constituted community group 

Capital & 
Revenue 

£500 - £20,000   

Tesco Bags of Help Tesco / 
Groundwork 

Bags of Help is Tesco's local 
community grant scheme 
where the money raised by the 
carrier bage charge in tesco 
stores is being used to fund 
thousands of community 
projects across the UK. The 
projects must meet the criteria 
of bringing benefits to the 
community. 

voluntary or community 
organisations including registered 
charities/companies, schools, health 
bodies, NHS Hospital Trust, 
Foundation Trust, Parish/Town 
Councils, Local authorities and social 
housing providers 

Capital From £1000 to £4000 
can be awarded 

Fully funded or match 
funded if larger project 

Tudor Trust  Tudor Trust Core funding, unrestricted 
funding, project grants, capital 
grants  

organisations/charities seeking 
support for work that has a 
charitable purpose 

Capital & 
Revenue 

No limit set Fully funded 

P
age 50



17 
 

Local Community 
Projects Fund 

Greggs 
Foundation 

The Local Community Projects 
Fund awards grants of up to 
£2000 to enable not for profit 
organisations to do something 
they otherwise couldn't afford 
to. 

Organisations supporting people in 
need.  Any not for profit 
organisation can apply, however 
larger organisations with a turnover 
in excess of £300,000 will be 
unsuccessful 

Capital £2,000 Fully funded 

Esmee Fairbairn 
Foundation 

Esmee 
Fairbairn 
Foundation 

Grants available to 
organisations doing legally 
charitable work in the UK that 
focuses on the Foundation's 
funding priorities in the arts, 
children and young people, the 
environment, food or social 
change 

Charities and not-for-profit 
organisations with a regular annual 
turnover of at least £50,000  

Capital & 
Revenue 

Max £500,000 Match funding is not 
required however, it 
may help to have 
funding commitments 
from other sources and 
a credible investment 
raising plan 

Tampon Tax 
Community Fund 

Department 
for Digital, 
Culture, 
Media and 
Sport 

Grants are available to local 
not-for-profit organisations for 
local projects that improve the 
lives of disadvantaged women 
and girls in local communities 
across the UK 

Registered UK charities, constituted 
community groups, companies 
limited by guaranteed with 
charitable aims, community interest 
companies, co-operatives, credit 
unions, social enterprises  

Revenue £10,000 Fully funded or match 
funded 

Trusthouse 
Charitable 
Foundation 

The 
Trusthouse 
Charitable 
Foundation 

Grants are available to smaller 
charitable and not-for-profit 
organisations in the UK to fund 
community support, arts, 
education and heritage 
projects in areas of extreme 
urban deprivation or remote, 
socio-economically deprived 
rural areas 

Established charitable organisations 
including CICs, social enterprises, 
not-for-profit registered companies, 
voluntary organisations 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Max £60,000 Applicants must have 
secured a minimum of 
50% of the total project 
cost before applying for 
both capital & revenue 
projects 

P
age 51



18 
 

Co-op Local 
Community fund 

Co-op 
Membership 

Helps pay for local projects 
that co-op members care 
about through 1% of own 
brand sales and carrier bag 
charges 

Charities, local community groups or 
not-for-profit organisations 

Capital & 
Revenue 

    

ACT Foundation 
(ACT) 

ACT 
Foundation Provides grants to individuals 

and other UK charities with the 
aim of enhancing the quality of 
life for people in need, 
specifically the mentally and 
physically disabled and the 
aged. 

UK registered charities Not specified No upper limit but 
most grant awards are 
for under £10,000 

  

Armed Forces 
Covenant Fund 
Trust - Veterans 
Community 
Centres 
Programme 

Ministry of 
Defence 

The funding is to be used to 
improve existing community 
centres used by veterans. 

Registered charity or CIC that 
already supports the Armed Forces 
Community 

Capital £30,000 Fully Funded 

Baily Thomas 
Charitable Fund 

Baily Thomas 
Charitable 
Fund 

The Charity aims to support 
work for the aid and relief of 
those affected by learning 
disability 

Voluntary organisations which are 
registered charities or are 
associated with a  registered charity 

Capital or 
Revenue 

two grant schemes - 
small grants from 
£250 up to £10,000 or 
general grants over 
£10,000 

Can be match      
funded 

Improving Lives 
Grant Programme 

The Henry 
Smith Charity 

Grants for small and medium 
sized organisations in the UK 
to support projects and the 
running costs of organisations 

Charities and not-for-profit 
organisations including social 
enterprises 

Capital & 
Revenue 

£20k - £60k    

P
age 52



19 
 

Appendix 2 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
October 2018 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 

This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we 
will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and mutual 
respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job applicants and 
workforce. 
 

We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of ethnic 
origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, religious 
beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality, 
responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be shown to be justified. 
 
The Council is required to have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that is 
prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.  
 
The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  

 removing or minimising disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected 
characteristics 

 taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are different from the 
needs of other people  

 encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life or in other activities 
where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 
The protected characteristics are: 

 

 Age  Race 

 Disability  Religion, Belief or Non-Belief 

 Gender Re-assignment  Sex 

 Marriage and Civil Partnership  Sexual Orientation 

 Pregnancy and Maternity  Welsh Language* 
 

*  The Welsh language is not identified as a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 2010, 
however in Wales we also have to treat Welsh and English on an equal basis as well as promoting 
and facilitating the use of the Welsh language. 

 
Further advice on completing impact assessments can be found on the equalities pages of Corporate 
Policy Unit Portal. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



20 
 

 
THE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

 
Establishment of a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund which 
combines all of the current grant funding programmes run 
under the Regeneration Department. 

 
 

DIRECTORATE  
Communities 
 
 

SERVICE AREA  
Regeneration & Planning – Urban Renewal and Business 
Support & Funding Teams 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Allan Dallimore 
Urban Renewal Team Leader 
dallia@caerphilly.gov.uk 
01443 866441 
 

DATE FOR NEXT REVIEW 
OR REVISION 

 
N/A 
 

 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is used to refer to what is 
being assessed, and therefore includes policies, strategies, functions, procedures, practices, 
initiatives, projects and savings proposals.  
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh Language 
issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making processes governing work 
undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work done at a corporate level. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in more detail 
through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 2016-2020. 
 
When carrying out an EIA you should consider both the positive and negative consequences of your 
proposals. If a project is designed for a specific group e.g. disabled people, you also need to think 
about what potential effects it could have on other areas e.g. young people with a disability, BME 
people with a disability. 
 
There are a number of supporting guidance documents available on the Corporate Policy Unit 
Portal and the Council’s Equalities and Welsh Language team can provide advice as the EIA is being 
developed.  Please note that the team does not write EIAs on behalf of service areas, the support 
offered is in the form of advice, suggestions and in effect, quality control. 
 
Contact equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk for assistance. 

Page 54

mailto:equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk


21 
 

 

PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description and outline the purpose of the new or updated proposal 
by way of introduction.) 
 
A draft cabinet report presents a proposal to combine the existing regeneration grants into a single 
“Caerphilly Enterprise Fund” with a refocus towards offering improved support to start up businesses, 
stimulating economic growth, filling identified supply chain voids and supporting job creation.  Officers 
have undertaken a review of the current regeneration grant regimes, and have recommended merging 
the grants into a single, targeted grant regime with an economic output focus.  This Caerphilly Enterprise 
Fund will look to streamline the existing grants processes and have one point of access, making it easier 
to navigate for applicants. 
 
The Cabinet report proposes the refocusing of all regeneration grants towards economic outputs under a 
streamlined grants protocol. The report advocates that part of the Community Regeneration Fund (CRF) 
budget be identified as a possible MTFP saving and the remainder re-refocused towards supporting 
business and property grants that the department operates. The current 2018/19 approved budgets for 
CRF are £100,057 revenue and £100,000 capital. Likewise, it is proposed that the Community 
Regeneration Fund capital budget be re-directed towards the property focused category of the proposed 
Caerphilly Enterprise Fund.  
 
Effectively the report recommends the closure of the current CRF programme of grant funding as it 
operates at present. Whilst the purpose of the Community Regeneration Fund (CRF) has been to foster 
and enhance viable and sustainable communities within Caerphilly county borough, it is acknowledged 
that with reduced internal resources, the focus of grant activity should be focused on economic outputs.  
It is further acknowledged that there are external grants bodies who offer similar funding for local 
projects. The new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will not exclude community groups from bidding into it, but 
the focus of the grants will be much narrower.  It is acknowledged that the new grant regime may mean 
that some community groups will no longer be able to bid in for funding.  
 

 
 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the public 
generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road users, people 
using country parks, people on benefits etc.  Are there any data gaps?) 
 
The proposed Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will offer improved support to start up businesses and will offer 
a streamlined grants application process to existing SME’s that will be easier to access, be more 
responsive to the needs of the business community and help stimulate economic growth. Local 
businesses and entrepreneurs will benefit from a more focused and better funded grants programme.  
 
The Enterprise fund will harmonise the existing Regeneration grants processes under one umbrella.  The 
current CRF is used by voluntary and community groups to deliver community based projects that must 
have one of more of the following aims: 

 they will enhance employment prospects and skills of local people, particularly the young and 
those at a disadvantage, and promote equality of opportunity 

 they will protect and improve the local environment and infrastructure, and bring land and buildings 
into effective use 

 they will enhance the quality of life of people through social, cultural and recreational opportunities 

 they will promote and encourage local people to secure a sustainable future for local communities 
and/or encourage regeneration. 

 

Page 55



22 
 

With the proposed new regime, community groups and social enterprises will only be able to submit bids 
aimed at the first of the bullet points above, specifically  at economic outputs 
 
In 2017-18, £129K revenue and £167K capital was allocated to 17 projects in 5 bidding rounds  The 
ability to fund third sector projects for anything other than economically focused projects would be lost if 
the current funding levels were identified as MTFP savings or vired to the new Caerphilly Enterprise 
Fund.  

 
The existing CRF Fund has traditionally enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the 
county borough to bid for funding to take forward initiatives they have developed for the benefit of the 
local community or service users.   Since its inception in 2011 a wide range of groups have received 
grant aid at up to 80% intervention rate. Churches, sports clubs, scout groups, Older people groups and 
local community partnerships are regular recipients of the grant with bigger organisations such as GAVO 
and Inside Out also receiving monies from the fund. These groups will still be able to bid into the 
enterprise fund but will need to have more focused projects. In addition, Council officers will continue to 
work with these groups to sign post them to the various external grant bodies that they can access 
 
 
A wider consultation process will be conducted with the voluntary sector and community groups 

 

 
 

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the services 
available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed changes, or does 
not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access to 
the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from other 
people?) 
 
The proposed Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will be delivered using protocols and processes that comply 
with the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan and the Welsh Language Measure. All documentation will be 
bi-lingual.  
 
The application will include questions regarding welsh language and equalities and how the grantee will 
pay due regard to both.  
 
The application process will be easier to navigate for potential grant applicants. The programme will be 
open , transparent and more streamlined 
 
The creation of the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will effectively bring a single application process  for 
applicants to bid into for projects.  The Voluntary Sector and community groups will be advised on how 
best to bid under this fund and will also be signposted to other funding opportunities for projects. 
 
A wider consultation exercise is advocated before the proposals are implemented 

 
 
 

Page 56



23 
 

 

4 Is your proposal going to affect any people or groups of people with protected 
characteristics? 
(Has the service delivery been examined to assess if there is any indirect effect on any groups?  
Could the consequences of the policy or savings proposal differ dependent upon people’s 
protected characteristics?) 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive, 
Negative, 
Neutral 

Relevance of the Policy or Practice 

Age negative 
Some grants have been awarded to help these groups. Possible 
negative impact if they are discontinued 

Disability negative 
Some grants have been awarded to help these groups. Possible 
negative impact if they are discontinued 

Gender 
Reassignment 

neutral  

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership 

neutral  

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

neutral  

Race neutral  

Religion & Belief negative 
Some grants have been awarded to help these groups. Possible 
negative impact if they are discontinued 

Sex neutral  

Sexual Orientation neutral  

 

5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive or 
adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the 
English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 89, 90, 
91, 92 and 93.  The full detail of each Standard is available on the Corporate Policy 
Unit Portal.  Although it is important that what is outlined in the proposal is available in 
Welsh and English, please consider wider impacts on Welsh speakers.) 
 
Consideration has been given to the how the project will be delivered having due regard for the Welsh 
language. 
 
All information and promotional material made available to the public will be in line with the requirements 
of the Welsh Language Standards and is produced bilingually.  All application forms under the proposed 
Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will also be available bilingually. Officers will ensure that the Welsh 
Language Standards which relate to Grants are adhered to as part of the process. 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 57



24 
 

 
INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Please outline any evidence and / or research you have collected which supports 
the proposal?  This can include an analysis of service users. 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or lower 
participation of uptake by one or more protected characteristic groups? If so, what has 
been done to address any difference in take up of the service?  Does any savings 
proposal include an analysis of those affected?) 
 
 
Commercial Improvement Grants 
In the financial 5 year period between 2013 and 2018 a total of 16 CIG were awarded for improvement 
works to properties in towns and villages throughout the County Borough. Although the maximum grant 
award is £15,000 under this programme, the average grant award was £9,100. Evidence therefore 
suggests that reducing the maximum grant approval to £10,000 will still stimulate economic activity and 
will also allow more applications to be processed per annum. The Council holds a very large database for 
property owners who have submitted an Expression of Interest. To date there are  over 60 expressions of 
interest, 
 
 
Business Grants (BDG & BSUG) 
 Evidence from the 3 previous years suggests that BDG grants at a maximum of £2,000 do help create 
jobs in small businesses. When compared against the recent LIF programme, (which had an average 
grant rate of nearly £6,000) the evidence shows that the BDG regime appear to be better value for 
money. Although it could be argued that a more targeted approach with a maximum grant to £10,000 
would help deliver greater impact to fewer businesses, the facts show that awards at a lower level do 
help business growth and create more jobs overall than a more targeted approach. Evidence shows that 
the full budget is fully expended ‘year on year’ with strong demand for the grants programme. 
 
 Small BSUG grants have been offered at a maximum rate of £500 per application. Feedback from 
officers administrating the grant suggests that this level of support is ideal to help start lifestyle micro 
businesses. With a small budget of £5,000 which is derived from an annual donation from TATA Steel,  it 
appears illogical to increase the grant level as this would dramatically reduce the number of new 
businesses that could be supported. Also by retaining the core elements of the grant this will also help 
any future awards to comply with the terms and conditions imposed by TATA Steel. 
 
Current Community Regeneration Fund 
Since 2011 a wide range of groups have received grant aid at up to 80% intervention rate. Churches, 
sports clubs, scout groups, OAP groups and local community partnerships have been regular recipients 
of the grant with bigger organisations such as GAVO and Inside Out also receiving monies from the fund. 
Between 2011/12 and 2016/17 a total of £1,897,312 was awarded via the Community Regeneration 
Fund, which levered in match funding of £3,351,769 from a variety of sources, However in 2017/18 the 
fund was under-subscribed. 
 
It has been established that there are circa twenty external bodies who offer grant support to the 
voluntary sector and community groups and it is proposed that CCBC groups use these to a greater 
extent than they have to date.  
 
Information  will be gathered during the consultation period with the voluntary sector and community 
groups and will be reflected in the final report to Cabinet on this proposal.  
 
 

 
 
 

Page 58



25 
 

 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

7 Please outline the consultation / engagement process and outline any key 
findings. 
(Include method of consultation, objectives and target audience.  What steps have 
been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been consulted during the 
development of this proposal?  Have you referred to the Equalities Consultation and 
Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
Before implementing the move towards an overarching Caerphilly Enterprise Fund that concentrates on 
economic outputs it is proposed that the new grants protocol will go to the Voluntary Sector Liaison 
Committee (and or the voluntary sector/community groups individually) The VSLC is a consultee on 
changes to third sector funding and as such will have a chance to comment on the proposals from this 
stance.  In addition, the Cabinet report recommends that Cabinet approve wider consultation with 
community groups and voluntary sector organisations on the proposals within the report. 

 

 

MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or complaints 
systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able analyse responses 
from particular groups?)  
 
 
The Caerphilly Enterprise Fund grants, like the current business grants, will have an inbuilt monitoring 
protocol. 
 
Officers within the Regeneration team will have the specific role of monitoring not only who grants have 
been awarded to but also the impact off the grants on those businesses/organisations who they are 
awarded to. 

 
 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the community 
are being met?) 
 
Officers monitor the grants and evaluate them using a set of criteria that the grants are awarded against. 
The criteria currently do not include for impact on protected characteristics. 
 
However the Council will ensure that residents of Caerphilly are potentially able to benefit from the 
economic impacts of grant award and that grant applications are encouraged from all geographic 
locations. 

 
 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising amongst 
staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of some sort?) 

Page 59



26 
 

 
Officers need to encourage collaborative working and encourage all grant applicants and recipients to 
work to sustainable development principles (I-CLIP – involvement, collaboration, long term, integration, 
prevention) and use the medium of Welsh where possible and practicable. 

 
Officers from within the Council’s Community Regeneration and Economic Development section will 
continue to offer support and advice to community and voluntary groups as to how best to take projects 
forward and benefit from external grant bodies 

 
 
 

11 If any adverse impact has been identified, please outline any mitigation action. 
 
Officers will ensure that all partners and local organisations are aware of the new Caerphilly Enterprise 
Fund and are encouraged to submit applications.  
 
There are a large number of external community and voluntary sector grants programmes and vehicles 
that the Council can help signpost groups to, that will help alleviate any negative impact of the CRF fund 
being withdrawn 

 
 

 

12 What wider use will you make of this Equality Impact Assessment? 
(What use will you make of this document i.e. as a consultation response, appendix to 
approval reports, publicity etc. in addition to the mandatory action shown below?) 
 
The assessment will underpin delivery of the Caerphilly Enterprise fund to ensure that all communities, 
groups, their protected characteristics are given the same opportunity to access the funding. 
 
The EIA will be appended to the Cabinet report 

 
 

 
 

Page 60



27 
 

13 An equality impact assessment may have four possible outcomes, through more 
than one may apply to a single proposal.  Please indicate the relevant outcome(s) 
of the impact assessment below.   

Please tick as appropriate: 
 

No major change – the impact assessment demonstrated that the proposal 
was robust; there was no potential for discrimination or adverse impact.  All 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken.  
 

Adjust the proposal – the impact assessment identified potential problems 
or missed opportunities.  The proposal was adjusted to remove barriers or 
better promote equality.   
 

Continue the proposal – the impact assessment identified the potential 
problems or missed opportunities to promote equality.  The justification(s) for 
continuing with it have been clearly set out.  (The justification must be 
included in the impact assessment and must be in line with the duty to have 
due regard.  Compelling reasons will be needed for the most important 
relevant proposals.) 
 

Stop and remove the proposal – the impact assessment identified actual or 
potential unlawful discrimination.  The proposal was stopped and removed, 
or changed. 

 

  

Completed by: Allan Dallimore 

Date: 20.11.18 

Position: Team Leader, Urban Renewal 

Name of Head of Service: Rhian Kyte – Head of Regeneration and 
Planning 

 

 

 

X 

 

Page 61



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 62



 
 
 

CABINET  27TH FEBRUARY 2019 
 

 
SUBJECT: FUNDING FOR THE INSTALLATION OF ENERGY EFFICIENT 

LIGHTING THROUGHOUT TY PENALLTA 
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR (COMMUNITIES)  
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The report seeks Cabinet approval of funding arrangements for the installation of 

energy efficient lighting throughout Ty Penallta offices.   
 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The existing florescent lights within Ty Penallta are to be replaced with modern 

energy efficient LED fittings. This £175,000 project will reduce the annual electricity 
bill by £24,000 and reduce the Authority’s carbon footprint by 83 tonnes per annum. 

The upgrade project is approved for funding via the Local Authority Energy 
Financing (LEAF) invest to save loan scheme and work can start in February 2019. 
However, it is proposed that a portion of the projected Miscellaneous Finance 
underspend be utilised to pay off the loan in 2018/19 which will allow the annual 
energy cost saving to be declared as a recurring MTFP saving. The released LEAF 
funds will be diverted to other energy reduction projects on or within Authority 
buildings.  

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve the use of a portion of the projected 

Miscellaneous Finance underspend to fund the Ty Penallta lighting upgrade project 
costing £175,000 and that the associated energy cost saving of £24,000 be declared 
as a recurring MTFP saving. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The recommendation allows in year underspends to be used to invest in a project 

which will deliver recurring revenue cost savings with a payback period of 
approximately 7 years.  

 
  

Page 63

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The lighting to the main office areas within Ty Penallta is based on a now outdated 

technology. The lights within the west wing of the first floor were replaced with 
modern movement and light sensitive LED fittings in 2018. These new lights use 75% 
less energy than the previous fittings but as they dim on brighter days and are 
movement activated the actual energy saving will be greater. This trial was 
successful and the upgrade is now intended to be rolled out to the rest of the 

building. A £175,000 project was approved for Local Authority Energy Financing 
(LEAF) invest to save funding and following a competitive tender process the 
contract was awarded with work to commence in February 2019.  

 
5.2 The LEAF funding is a loan which is normally repaid over many years so a recurring 

revenue cost saving arising from the reduced electricity costs would not be realised 
and it is now proposed that a portion of the projected Miscellaneous Finance 
underspend is used to pay off the loan in 2018/19. The £24,000 annual reduction in 
electricity charges would then be offered as a recurring MTFP saving. 

 
5.3 Conclusion   

Given the availability of funds, it is recommended the project is fully funded by the 
Authority in 2018/19 and the consequential electricity cost saving declared as a 
recurring MTFP saving thereafter.  
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 The projected electricity cost saving is based on 2018/19 unit electricity charges and 
operational experience relating to operating hours. It is likely that electricity costs will 
increase and therefore the projected saving is considered conservative.    

 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 The reduction in carbon emissions resulting from reduced energy consumption links 

to the Public Service Board Well Being Plan and its “Cleaner and Greener” priority. 
 
7.2 The resultant recurring revenue saving links to the Authority’s medium term financial 

plan and the need to reduce revenue expenditure in future years. 
 
7.3 In this regard the savings directly link to the Authority’s medium term financial plan 

principle aimed at limiting the impact of cuts on front link services by reducing 
expenditure elsewhere.  

 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The recommendation within this report links to the well being goal “A Globally 

responsible Wales” as a result of reducing the Authority’s carbon footprint. 
 
8.2 The recommendation within this report is consistent with the five ways of working as 

defined within the sustainable development principle in the Act and in particular the 
importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability of 
future generations to meet their long-term needs. 

 

Page 64



8.3 The recommendation within this report secures a recurring revenue saving which will 
reduce financial pressure on other areas and is therefore consistent with long term 
aim of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act to improve the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.  
 

9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  There are no equalities implications associated with the recommendations within this 

report.  
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The recommendation within this report requires that £175,000 of the projected 

Miscellaneous Finance underspend is diverted to fund the lighting upgrade project 
but will give rise to a recurring revenue saving of £24,000 per annum.  

 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no personnel implications arising from the recommendations within this 

report. 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The views of the consultees listed below have been incorporated in this report. 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Local Government Acts 2000.  
 
 
Author: Mark Williams – Interim Head of Property Services – 

willim17@caerphilly.gov.uk 
  
 
Consultees: Cllr Lisa Phipps – Cabinet Member for Homes and Places 
  lisaphipps@caerphilly.gov.uk 
  Nicole Scammell – Head of Corporate Finance & Section 151 Officer 
  scammn@caerphilly.gov.uk 
  Paul Rossiter – Energy Water & Conservation Officer 
  rossip@caerphilly.gov.uk 

Rob Tranter – Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer 
trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Mark S Williams – Interim Corporate Director(Communities) 
willims@caerphilly.gov.uk 

 

Page 65

mailto:willim17@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:lisaphipps@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:scammn@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:rossip@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 66



 

* 

 

CABINET – 27TH FEBRUARY 2019 
 

SUBJECT: CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR – EDCUATION AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To seek Cabinet endorsement of the Forward Work Programme for the period February to 

May 2019. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report outlines a proposed Forward Work Programme of future Cabinet reports.  
 
2.2 The Forward Work Programme is updated on a weekly basis to reflect any amendments that 

are made to it since it was first agreed on 22nd January 2014. 
 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Council is required to publish a Cabinet Forward Work Programme to assist in open and 

transparent decision-making. 
 
3.2 The Forward Work Programme contributes to the following Well-being goals within the Well-

being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015, by ensuring that decision making is made 
against the following goals:  
 
• A prosperous Wales 
• A resilient Wales 
• A healthier Wales 
• A more equal Wales 
• A Wales of cohesive communities 
• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
• A globally responsible Wales 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The Cabinet Forward Work Programme sets out the key reports that Cabinet expects to 

receive in the coming months.  It is a legal requirement that such programmes are published.  
The programme is an important way of tracking progress against targets set in the Council's 
Improvement Plan. 

 
4.2 Appendix 1 to this report sets out details of the Cabinet Forward Work Programme for the 

period February to May 2019. 
 
4.3 It should be noted that urgent and unanticipated reports could be added to the Cabinet Work 

Programme. 

Page 67

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



 
4.4 Members will be aware that, following the Scrutiny review and recommendations approved by 

Council on 6th October 2015, that it was agreed that the format of the Forward Work 
Programme will be reviewed so that it gives more detailed narratives.  This has been 
undertaken and presented at Appendix 1. 

  

Page 68



5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 This report contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above.  It is 

consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in the Act in that it ensures that the Cabinet Forward Work Programme is regularly 
published and publically available, thus informing the public and stakeholders of upcoming 
reports and key issues and offering them the opportunity to attend and observe executive 
decisions, thus promoting openness and transparency. 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The principles of good governance are directly linked to the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Objectives, stemming from duties under the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.  Equalities Implications 
are a standard part of all committee reports in order to ensure that due consideration has 
been given to the views of individuals and groups from the communities of Caerphilly county 
borough, regardless of their backgrounds and circumstances. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no personnel implications associated with this report. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been reflected in this report. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve the Forward Work Programme as outlined in 

Appendix 1. 
 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 To satisfy legislative requirements and to ensure more transparent and effective decision-

making. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Local Government Acts 1972 and 2000. 
 
 
Author: Cath Forbes-Thompson, Interim Head of Democratic Services 
Consultees: Corporate Management Team 
  
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 

 

Page 69



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 70



Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member Time Attendees

Bedwellty School Playing Fields

To seek the views of Cabinet on the disposal of two football fields situated 

within the grounds  of the former Bedwellty Comprehensive School, 

Aberbargoed following the completion of the consultation process outlined 

within the Playing Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal Decisions) 

(Wales) Regulations 2015

M Headington Cllr. Lisa Phipps

Review of CCBC Regeneration Grants

To make recommendations to Cabinet following a review undertaken on the 

revenue and capital grant schemes currently administered by the Council's 

Regeneration Division.  The report outlines proposals to amalgaamte the grants 

into a combined "Caerphilly Enterprise Fund" and to focus their delivery to 

areas where they will have the biggest impact.

R. Kyte Cllr. Sean Morgan

Funding for the installation of energy efficient 

lighting through Ty Penallta

The report seeks Cabimet approval of funding arrangements for the installation 

of energy efficient lighting throughout Ty Penallta offices. 
Mark Williams Cllr. Lisa Phipps

Cabinet Forward Work Programme For discussion and update

Catherine 

Forbes-

Thompson

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

Cabinet - Cabinet & PDM Forward Work Programme - 27/02/2019

P
age 71



0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

P
age 72



Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member Time Attendees

Hafodyrynys Air Quality Feasibility Study

To present for approval for public consultation the draft Final Plan prepared in 

response to the Air Quality Direction issued by Welsh Government in respect of 

compliance with the EU Air Quality Directive at Hafodyrynys

Rob Hartshorn Cllr. Eluned Stenner

Education Attainment Strategy 
Richard 

Edmunds
Cllr. Phillipa Marsden

EAS Business Plan EAS Cllr. Phillipa Marsden

Post 16/ Single Sex Review Terms of Reference
Richard 

Edmunds
Cllr. Phillipa Marsden

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013- Proposed 

Increase in Re-Rating Fee
To seek Cabinet approval for an increase in the food hygiene re-rating visit fee. Rob Hartshorn

Schools Capital Programme
To make recommendations to  Cabinet on the allocation of the Schools Capital 

Programme
Sue Richards Cllr. Phillipa Marsden

Flexible Retirement Formal agreement for the period of flexible retirment to be changed L Donovan Cllr. Colin Gordan

0

0

0
0

Cabinet - Cabinet & PDM Forward Work Programme - 13/03/2019

P
age 73



0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

P
age 74



Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member Time Attendees

Community Asset Transfer Principles
To seek the views of Cabinet on the adoption of a set of principles in relation to 

the transfer of playing fields and sporting organisations

Mike 

Headington 
Cllr. Lisa Phipps

New Community Resource Centre at Ty Sign
To seek Cabinet support in principle for the development of a new Community 

Resource Centre in Ty Sign, Risca
Rob Hartshorn Cllr. Nigel George

Publication of the Gender Pay Gap Data 2018
To meet the statutory obligation to publish CCBC data by the 30th March each 

year in accordance with the Equality Act 2010
Lynne Donovan Cllr. Colin Gordan

Non- Residential Social Services Charging
To propose changes to the current non-residential charging model to ensure 

equity for all service users.
Jo Williams Cllr. Carl Cuss

Caerphilly 2022 Steve Harris Cllr. Colin Gordan

Welsh Church Fund

To provide an update on the revised grant levels and criteria approved by 

Cabinet on 28th March 2018 and to determine whether further revisions are 

required.

Stephen Harris Cllr. Barbara Jones

0

0

0

0
0

Cabinet - Cabinet & PDM Forward Work Programme - 27/03/2019

P
age 75



0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

P
age 76



Wednesday - 10/04/2019
Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member Time Attendees

Newbridge Leisure Centre Fitness Suite

To seek Cabinet approval for improvements 

to the fitness suite at Newbridge Leisure 

Centre

Rob Hartshorn Cllr. Nigel George

Pontllanfraith Leisure Centre To consider the Future of the Leisure Mark S Williams Cllr. Nigel George

Children’s Centre.

To consider the building of a new Children’s 

centre in the County Borough and to 

highlight the issues of joint funding between 

CCBC and the Aneurin Bevan University 

Health Board.

J. Williams Cllr. Carl Cuss

Chartist Gardens Development, 

Pontllanfraith
Mark S. Williams/Dave Street Cllr. Lisa Phipps

Wednesday - 24/04/2019

Corporate Asset Management Strategy Mark Williams

Wednesday - 15/05/2019

2019 Property Review Report Annual Report to be approved by Cabinet Mark Williams

Wednesday - 29/05/2019

Wednesday - 12/06/2019

Cabinet -  Forward Work Programme

P
age 77



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 78


	Agenda
	3 Y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 13 Chwefror 2019.
	4 Caeau Chwarae Ysgol Bedwellte.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4

	5 Adolygiad o Grantiau Adfywio CBSC.
	6 Ariannu ar gyfer gosod goleuadau ynni effeithlon ledled T? Penallta.
	7 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	Cabinet Forward Work Programme 27 02 2019


